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The story of repositioning and renovating the bank of america plaza
in nashville, tennessee,is told on pages four and five. this story captures
many elements of parkway’s culture — teamwork, dedication, persistence
and results — that make parkway a great place to work.



P R E S I D E N T ’ S     L E T T E R

Total return to our shareholders
during 2004 was 29.1%, which
is well in excess of the returns
of the broader market with the
Dow Jones Industrial Average and
the S&P 500 increasing by 3.2%
and 9.1%, respectively. While this
is a noteworthy achievement, our
return to shareholders was com-
parable to that of our peers, with
the NAREIT’s Equity REIT and
Office Indices posting returns of
31.6% and 23.3%, respectively.
Although we were pleased with
our total return for 2004, we were

more pleased by a report by Citi-
group Smith Barney in June 2004
that reflected Parkway as the num-
ber one performing REIT in the
United States for total return from
1994-2003, with a compounded
annual return of 22.5%. In Octo-
ber 2004, Morgan Stanley
issued a report that also named
Parkway as the REIT with the high-
est average annual total return
to shareholders over the ten-
year period – 1994 to 2004 – of
25.7%. This report also ranked
returns using the Sharpe ratio1,
a financial measure of risk, which
acknowledged Parkway as the

highest “risk-adjusted” return in
the office sector. Long-term total
shareholder return, measured
by dividends and stock price
increase, is the ultimate measure
of performance, and your Com-
pany was number one in both
studies over this long time horizon.

While our performance in equity
returns is important, we had many
other noteworthy accomplish-
ments in 2004. In June, Parkway
was named among the Top 25
Best Small Companies to Work for
in America. Based primarily on

employee responses to a detailed
survey about workplace cultures,
this award is special because it
comes from the heart of Parkway,
our people. We are humbled by
this recognition, which reflects
the level of trust, pride and cama-
raderie within the Parkway team.
In October Parkway was added
to the S&P SmallCap 600 Index,
which created many positive
benefits, including greater visi-
bility of our common stock and
higher daily trading volumes. 

Our Funds from Operations
(FFO) were $4.51 per diluted share
in 2004 compared to $4.38
in 2003. Funds available for
distribution (FAD) for 2004
were $27,577,000 compared

to $30,254,000 for 2003. FAD
is an important number because,
as the name implies, it shows
whether or not a company has
funds available to cover its
distributions to stockholders.
In 2004, our dividend exceeded
FAD by approximately $2 million,
reflecting the drop in average occu-
pancy during the year compared
to our historical occupancy, along
with a rapid re-leasing of that
vacancy. We anticipate FAD in
2005  to fully cover the dividend.
Our 70% customer retention

rate for 2004 is in line with our
eight-year average of 74%. We
saw occupancy increase four
consecutive quarters in 2004
and ended the year at 91.0%,
and as of March 1, 2005 the
portfolio had increased to 92.2%
leased. Additionally, we saw
significant increases in leasing
activity in the fourth quarter and
continue experiencing a stronger
leasing environment in the first
quarter of 2005 than we have
seen in some time. We believe
the office markets have bottomed
out. With supply of new office
buildings in check and the demand
for office jobs increasing, the

long-awaited office market
recovery appears to be taking
hold. America created 2.2 mil-
lion new jobs in 2004, and jobs
fill up office buildings! 

Parkway’s internally measured
net asset value (NAV), a measure
of the underlying private market
value of our assets, falls in the
$38.00 - $42.00 per common
share range. Our stock price
traded above our NAV for most
of 2004, reflecting a strong flow
of funds into the REIT industry
and Parkway’s position within

the industry. Well-operated
REITs with sound strategies and
solid balance sheets should trade
at modest premiums to under-
lying NAV, due to the liquidity,
transparency of information,
diversification and public market
discipline that management offers.
Two years ago we promised to
work diligently to improve our
stock value relative to NAV, and
we are pleased to be able to
report a dramatic improvement
in both years.
1 The Sharpe ratio divides average portfolio
excess returns over the sample period by the
standard deviation of return for that period.
It measures the reward-to-volatility trade off.

Marshall Loeb,
Steve Rogers,
Jim Ingram and
Tom Maloney

WE ARE IN THE CUSTOMER RETENTION BUSINESS.
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We have great people who
provide great customer service.
This leads to retention of
creditworthy customers; high
customer retention leads to
higher occupancy and higher
net operating income (NOI ).
We control operating expenses
at the property and corporate
levels. We finance this NOI
intelligently, creating stable,
growing funds from operations.
This in turn drives funds avai-
lable for distribution, which
allows for higher dividends and,
presumably, stock price appre-
ciation. These last two combine
to create total return, which
is most important to our share-
holders and what we stead-
fastly try to deliver. Doing all 
of this takes a real effort from
the entire Parkway team. It
also takes systems and strategies
that can and will be executed
effectively. In the following
pages we will show you how
we measure up on these impor-
tant fundamentals. 

Parkway has a long-standing
reputation of posting one of – if
not the – highest customer reten-
tion rates in the industry. Over the
past eight years, through good
times and bad, your Company
has maintained a 74% customer
retention rate. This leads to
higher occupancy, less down-
time, lower tenant improve-
ment costs and lower leasing
commissions. All things consi-
dered, we estimate that it costs
five to six times more to replace
an existing customer with a
new one.

Last year we ended the year with
the loss of two large customers,
Skytel in Jackson, as a result of the
MCI/WorldCom bankruptcy, and

Burlington Resources in Houston,
as a result of their consolidation
into one location. We reported to
you the significant progress we
had made by the time our 2003
Annual Report was published.
I am pleased to report that the
early success outlined in the “Tale
of Two Cities” continued for the
balance of 2004, and we are
currently 93% leased in these two
buildings. Customers will move
out from time to time. The impor-

tant factors are the actions we take
when they move out and the
results we achieve.

It is important to have time-
tested as well as innovative app-
roaches to producing new leases.
Over the years, Parkway has im-
plemented several new leasing
programs that work. Our Broker
Bill of Rights, short form service
agreement (others call it a lease)
and customer advocacy programs
are models in the industry.These
programs help us maintain occu-
pancy around 90% at a time when
the national occupancy rate is app-
roximately 84%.The chart on the
left-facing page shows that Park-
way occupancy outperforms the
national average and outperforms
12 of the 15 individual markets
where we are located as well.

We believe that as economic re-
covery takes hold, more and more
businesses will hire new employ-
ees and expand their office space.
Hiring leads to increased office
building occupancy and, ultimately,
better revenues through rental rate
increases. We believe Parkway’s fast-
growing markets position us as
early beneficiaries in the economic
recovery. Anecdotal evidence in
the first quarter of 2005 supports
the trend that began in early 2004.

On the investment front, 2004
was an active year for Asset Re-
cycling, using proceeds from joint
ventures and sales to diversify
and expand our portfolio into
more institutional markets, while
increasing our profitability through
the management, leasing and
construction fees earned from
third parties. We will discuss our
asset purchases and joint ventures
in greater detail in our VALUE2

Report Card later in this letter,
but our activity in this area is a

testimony to our steadfast com-
mitment to increasing value for
you, our shareholders, through
the efficient allocation of our
capital. A logical evolution of
the joint venture program is the
formation of a Discretionary Fund
that we initiated in 2005. We will
seek approximately $150 million
in private equity from institutional
investors including pension funds,
endowments and state retire-
ment systems. Parkway will invest
$50 million of equity and will
be a 25% co-investor in the Fund.
Matching this equity with 60%
debt, we expect to invest a
total of $500 million in new
assets through the formation of
this Fund. The Fund will bring
many benefits to our shareholders.
First, the economic returns gene-
rated from asset management,
property management, leasing
and construction management
bolster our return on investment
significantly. Second, making joint
investments reduces Parkway’s
risk, via diversification, across a
larger pool of assets. Third, full
discretion allows Parkway the
investment discretion it needs
to compete and the operating
discretion it requires to produce
these good returns. Fourth, the
holding period should be longer
than the typical joint venture,
allowing us stability and durability
in these enhanced returns. And
finally, by focusing our effort on
seven to eight markets, we bolster
the critical mass we currently
have in markets such as Houston,
Phoenix, Atlanta, Charlotte,
Orlando, Tampa/St. Petersburg,
Ft. Lauderdale and Chicago.
We will update you each quarter
in our conference calls on our
progress in this new area.

UNCOMPROMISING FOCUS ON OPERATIONS  IN ADDITION TO CREATING VALUE FOR SHAREHOLDERS VIA DIVIDENDS AND STOCK

APPRECIATION, HAVING A STRONG FOCUS ON OPERATIONS CREATES OPPORTUNITIES FOR OUR COMPANY TO GROW AND BECOME MORE

PROFITABLE. WE BELIEVE A COMPANY’S OPERATING SKILLS TRANSCEND LOCAL MARKETS, AND, WHEN IMPLEMENTED PROPERLY, A GOOD OPERATOR

CAN EXPAND INTO NEW MARKETS PROFITABLY AND EFFICIENTLY. BY FOCUSING ON PUTTING GREAT PEOPLE ON THE JOB, GOAL SETTING,

CUSTOMER RETENTION AND SYSTEMS AND OPERATIONS, PARKWAY DELINEATES ITSELF AS A STRONG OPERATOR OF RATHER THAN JUST AN

INVESTOR IN REAL ESTATE. AS INDICATED IN THE PROFIT CHAIN, OUR SECRET TO GOOD OPERATING PERFORMANCE IS HARDLY A SECRET.

Parkway
P R O F I T  C H A I N
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Most of you are familiar with
Parkway’s major markets, such as
Houston, Atlanta, Phoenix and
Chicago but less familiar with some
of the “secondary” markets in
which we have invested. These
markets include Memphis, Rich-
mond, Columbia, Knoxville and
others that have produced stable
growing returns, none of which
are “secondary” at all.

One such market is Nashville,
Tennessee. Our story here is one
of persistence, dedication, team-
work and ultimately RESULTS.

The story starts with our purchase
of the Bank of America Plaza in
downtown Nashville in December
2001 for $30 million or $72
per square foot. The property
was 89% occupied at closing,
with Bank of America occupying
180,000 square feet, expiring in
March 2012, and a major law firm
leasing 99,000 square feet, ex-
piring in May 2004. We under-
wrote the purchase under two
scenarios – first, the law firm
vacating and, secondly, keeping
the law firm at a lower rental

rate. In either case, the purchase
economics were sound. The
property, constructed in 1977,
had sustained tornado damage
to its exterior glass panels in
1998, and as part of the purchase,
we underwrote significant improve-
ments to the property to upgrade
the exterior glass with a more
modern look and greater energy
efficiency, as well as generally
upgrading the lobby, elevators
and restrooms. With these chal-
lenges in mind, we created a plan.

Persistence
Our team immediately started
working to fill the vacant space
and renew the major customers,
introducing the Broker Bill of
Rights and PDQ (Pay Darn Quick-
ly) Program to the Nashville brok-
erage community. In September 

of 2002, we signed a five-year
renewal on 79,000 square feet
with the law firm, commencing
June 1, 2004, which included
the ability to terminate the lease
with significant lease termination
penalties after years one, two and
three. We knew this customer was
considering moving into a new
property, so we continued our
efforts to find a replacement
customer for the space in the
event the firm terminated the
agreement. In January 2003, the
law firm announced that they would
be vacating our building in mid-
2005. While we never accept the
loss of a customer, we do occasion-
ally lose customers. In this instance,
it opened the door for Louisiana-
Pacific Corporation, a publicly
held manufacturer and distributor
of building products based in
Portland, Oregon, to relocate
to Nashville and, more importantly,
to the Bank of America Plaza.
The City of Nashville was indis-
pensable in the effort.

Parkway worked closely with
Tom Turner of the Nashville Down-
town Partnership, Tom Jurkovich,
Director of the Mayor’s Office
of Economic and Community
Development and Paul Ballard,
CEO of the Metropolitan Transit
Authority, to secure a commit-
ment from Louisiana-Pacific to
downtown Nashville. This persis-
tence resulted in Louisiana-Pacific
signing an eleven and a half year
agreement for 78,000 square feet.
Additionally, the City committed
to relocate the bus mall, which is
currently located adjacent to Bank
of America Plaza, a move that
benefits both the downtown
area and our building. 

Dedication
The end result of the 30-month
repositioning and renovation is
a beautiful new façade on the 

“While we hate to lose a customer, in this case we were able to accommodate the relocation needs of Louisiana-

Pacific Corporation and secure a long-term service agreement with a credit-worthy public company through 2015.”

— JOHN BARTON, Vice President + “Our team in Nashville is dedicated to providing exceptional customer service.

We enjoy a great relationship with city and state leaders and have a common goal of improving our community for

the good of everyone.” — LEE NATIONS, Nashville Property Manager

HOW PERSISTENCE, DEDICATION AND TEAMWORK PAID OFF WITH OUTSTANDING RESULTS FOR OUR COMPANY.

+
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building along Union Avenue
and 5th Streets, a new entry into
the building from Union Avenue
and significant upgrades to the
lobby area, including new artwork
and planters that allow the build-
ing to compete with other Class-A
buildings in the downtown market.
Chief Engineer Gary Wood, with
26 years of experience at the build-
ing noted, “Constant communi-
cation with our customers was
essential to completing the reno-
vation without disrupting their
business. It has been gratifying to
see the renewed sense of pride
that our customers have in being
a part of Bank of America Plaza
following the renovation.”

The Nashville renovation project
has received several awards and is
under consideration for several
additional awards. Parkway was
recognized by the Nashville Down-
town Partnership with its Living
Up to Downtown’s Potential
award in 2003 in recognition of
our commitment to and part-
nership with downtown Nashville.
The contractor for the exterior
improvements, Alexander Metals,
received a 2004 Award of Excel-
lence from the Mid-Tennessee
Chapter of the Associated Builders
& Contractors. The property is
currently under consideration for
the BOMA Office Building of
the Year – Renovation Award.

The renovation and repositioning
culminated with a summer bash,
a major fellowship event, at the
building in August 2004 with
Bill Purcell, Mayor of Nashville;
Mark Suwyn, then-CEO of Louisi-

ana-Pacific and Steve Rogers,
CEO of Parkway, addressing a
festive crowd of customers and
downtown supporters. 

Teamwork
In August of 2004, Lee Nations
moved from our Jackson corporate
headquarters  to Nashville to
provide leadership to an already 
experienced and accomplished
engineering team. Lee took the
baton from John Barton, our asset
manager, who was integrally invol-

ved in the building’s renovation
from start to finish. Together, they
provide exceptional customer
service to our customers at Bank
of America Plaza, as well as to
the greater downtown Nashville
area. Lee is serving on the Metro-
politan Transit Authority Steering
Committee, which is involved in
the site selection, design and
relocation of the bus mall. Our
commitment and involvement
transcends the one property we
own to include the entire down-
town community.

Results
The building is 94% leased today.
We have long term agreements
with creditworthy customers
that provide stability to our
revenue stream. We have a beau-
tiful building that competes
with other Class-A properties
to offer great value to our
customers. Our leasing efforts
were rewarded with half of
the law firm’s space being
leased more than one year
before they vacated.

{  5  }
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Venture with 
the Best Partners
In mid-December, we completed
the joint venture of two prop-
erties in Atlanta and one in Char-
lotte with Rubicon America Trust,
retaining an 80% interest in the
550,000 square foot portfolio.
Parkway recognized a net acqui-
sition fee of approximately $2
million and recorded a gain on
the sale of $3.5 million in the
fourth quarter. In January 2005,
the Company agreed to purchase
our partner’s 70% interest in 233
North Michigan Avenue for $135
million including assumption of
the existing first mortgage. We
believe the improving location,
a durable income stream and the
scale of 233 North Michigan will
make it appealing to other joint
venture partners.

Asset Recycling
During 2004, we purchased three
properties totaling 897,000
square feet in our core markets.
Maitland 200 in Orlando was
purchased in January, Capital
City Plaza in Atlanta was pur-
chased in April and Squaw Peak
Corporate Center in Phoenix 
was purchased in August. The
total purchase price for these
assets was $150 million. As
assets are recycled into higher-
yielding joint ventures, Parkway
creates value.

Leverage Neutral Growth
We started the VALUE2 Plan with
a debt to total market capitali-
zation of 45% and have operated

most of the plan below that lever-
age level, ending 2004 with a
debt to total market capitalization
of 41.4%. In early 2004, we re-
newed and revised our line of
credit, which now has a lower inter-
est cost, while allowing greater
financial flexibility. During 2004,
1,139,000 shares of 8.34% Series
B Convertible Preferred Stock
were converted into shares of
common stock, leading to an
improved fixed charge coverage
ratio, as well as increased trading
volume for our common shares.
Under our Dividend Reinvestment
and Stock Purchase Plan, we
issued 296,000 shares of com-
mon stock during 2004, with net
proceeds received of $11,515,000.
In conjunction with the purchase
of our partner’s interest in 233
North Michigan, the Company
sold 1,600,000 shares of common
stock on January 10, 2005, with
net proceeds of $76 million. We
anticipate that the Company’s
debt to total market capitalization
will average around 45% for the
three years of VALUE2. 

Uncompromising 
Focus on Operations
In 2004, our Focus on Operations
was best demonstrated by four
consecutive quarters of increasing
occupancy, from 87.9% on Jan-
uary 1, 2004 to 91.0% on January
1, 2005. Including 37 leases total-
ing 150,000 square feet that were
signed but not commenced as of
January 1, 2005, our percentage
leased increased to 92.3%. 

During 2004, we signed 500
new, renewal and expansion leases
totaling almost 2.1 million square
feet, making 2004 the most
active leasing year in our Comp-
any’s history. Our customer

retention rate also returned to
historical levels at 70% for the
year. Recognizing that in this
difficult real estate environment,
operating efficiently and consis-
tently is more important than ever
before, we continued the Uncom-
promising Focus on Operations
(UFO) program throughout 2004,
whereby our Customer Advocate
grades each property in all areas
of consistency and high standards.
This is done in conjunction with
the annual Customer Advocate
interviews with each customer.
We must continue to focus on
the basics of our business: custo-

mer retention, leasing, controlling
operating expenses and capital
expenditures and maintaining
our occupancy, all of which will
have the effect of maintaining
and increasing FFO and FAD.

Equity Returns to our
Shareholders 10% Greater
than our Peer Group
We are now two-thirds of the way
through the Plan and are achieving
this financial goal. We have ex-
ceeded the FFO growth of our
peer group by more than 10% in
both 2003 and 2004.

Overall, we grade ourselves
B+, as we did last year, leaving
room for improvement in 2005,
the final year of the Plan. Addi-
tionally, we have begun work on
a plan to follow VALUE2, which
we intend to announce in the
August 2005 conference call.

{  6  }

COMMITMENT TO PLANNING AND VALUE 2 PLANNING IS IMPORTANT AT PARKWAY BECAUSE WE BELIEVE PLANS THAT ARE

WELL THOUGHT OUT AND PROPERLY EXECUTED LEAD TO A MORE PREDICTABLE, CONSISTENT EARNINGS FLOW AND HIGHER

VALUES. FOR THE LAST TWO YEARS, I HAVE WRITTEN TO YOU OUTLINING THE VALUE 2 STRATEGIC PLAN. WE ARE NOW

70% COMPLETE, AND IT IS TIME TO GRADE OUR PROGRESS FOR 2004 IN EACH AREA OF THE PLAN.

M A I T L A N D  2 0 0
Orlando, Florida

VALUE2
�



C A P I TA L  C I T Y  P L A Z A
Atlanta, Georgia



More importantly, our culture
of doing the right things the right
way continues to be the major
influence on our behavior. We
hold ourselves to this higher
standard rather than merely what
is legally required. For 34 years,
our culture has been based on
simple, understandable, often
“corny” philosophies such as
“act like ladies and gentlemen,”
“treat everyone with respect,”
“build the team,” “lead by exam-
ple,” “I Think I Can” and others.
These values are important to us
and always have been. Simply
put, culture still matters and it

always will. Our culture is the
“squared” in VALUE2 that makes
the whole program work.

We believe our strong culture
has helped us to achieve a 2004
employee retention rate of 82%.
In fact, in the past ten years, only
one officer has left the company.
We believe that happy employees
empowered to work to their
fullest potential lead to higher

customer satisfaction and, ulti-
mately, a higher customer reten-
tion ratio and profits as outlined
earlier. Our culture is one of open
communication and continuous
self improvement. Low turnover
and high emphasis on training
lead to continuity of leadership
and a deeper bench. 

Last year, I reported to you
on some important leadership

changes at Parkway. Tom Maloney
was promoted to Chief Oper-
ating Officer, Jim Ingram was
promoted to Chief Investment
Officer and Marshall Loeb con-
tinues to serve as our Chief
Financial Officer, directing our
finance and accounting strategy
in tandem with our company
strategy. Mitch Mattingly and
Mandy Pope also took on addi-
tional leadership responsibilities.
I am very pleased to report that
these changes are working excep-
tionally well, and our leadership
bench is as deeper than ever.

In closing, we are grateful for
the support we have received
over the years from our share-
holders, customers, employees
and communities, without whom
we could not have accomplished
what we have. Thank you for the
faith you have placed in us;
we pledge to work hard every
day to earn it.

Sincerely,

Steven G. Rogers
President and CEO
March 4, 2005

CULTURE AND LEADERSHIP

IN 2004, WE CONTINUED THE

IMPORTANT WORK BEGUN IN

2002 AND 2003 BY IMPLEMENTING

THE VARIOUS NEW PROVISIONS

OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT,

ALONG WITH THE NEW REGU-

LATIONS ADOPTED BY THE SECURI-

TIES AND EXCHANGE COMMIS-

SION AND THE NEW YORK STOCK

EXCHANGE. WE COMPLETED THE

DOCUMENTATION AND TESTING

OF OUR INTERNAL CONTROLS

AND RECEIVED ERNST & YOUNG’S

CLEAN OPINION. SEE PAGE 32.

S Q U A W  P E A K
Phoenix, Arizona

Tom Maloney, David Fowler and
Warren Speed accepting the Top
25 Best Small Companies to Work
For in America Award in July, 2004.

TOP 25 BEST SMALL COMPANIES TO WORK FOR



SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 

Year 
Ended

12/31/04 

Year 
Ended

12/31/03 

Year 
Ended

12/31/02 

Year 
Ended

12/31/01 

Year 
Ended

12/31/00 
(In thousands, except per share data) 

Operating Data: 
Revenues 
     Income from office and parking properties $160,506  $142,196  $152,442  $135,968  $118,970  
     Other income 3,869  3,854  2,818  2,767  3,507  
Total revenues 164,375  146,050  155,260  138,735  122,477  
Expenses 
     Operating expenses: 
          Office and parking properties 73,487  63,362  65,942  57,465  49,397  
          Non-core assets 22  37  34  39  60  
          Interest expense  21,580  16,319  19,839  21,828  16,371  
          Depreciation and amortization 36,843  28,030  27,412  23,788  19,651  
     Interest expense on bank notes 4,237  3,399  6,647  5,497  6,927  
     General and administrative and other 4,822  4,592  5,445  5,240  4,689  

Income before gain (loss), minority interest, and 
     discontinued operations 23,384  30,311  29,941  24,878  25,382  
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures 1,697  2,212  824  62  47  
Gain (loss) on note receivable, joint venture interests, 
     real estate and real estate equity securities 4,309  10,661  (2,068) 1,611  9,471  
Minority interest - unit holders (2) (3) (2) (3) (4) 
Minority interest - real estate partnerships 127  - - - - 

Income before discontinued operations  29,515  43,181  28,695  26,548  34,896  
Income from discontinued operations - - 47  -  -  
Gain on sale of real estate from discontinued operations -  -  770  -  -  

Net income 29,515  43,181  29,512  26,548  34,896  
Original issue costs associated with redemption  
     of preferred stock - (2,619) - - - 
Dividends on preferred stock (4,800) (5,352) (5,797) (5,797) (5,797) 
Dividends on convertible preferred stock (5,186) (6,091) (6,257) (3,249) - 

Net income available to common stockholders $  19,529  $  29,119  $  17,458  $  17,502  $  29,099  

Net income per common share: 
     Basic:
     Income before  discontinued operations $      1.73  $      2.85  $      1.78  $      1.87  $      2.96  
     Discontinued operations -  -  .09  -  -  
     Net income $      1.73  $      2.85  $      1.87  $      1.87  $      2.96  

     Diluted:
     Income before discontinued operations $      1.70  $      2.79  $      1.75  $      1.85  $      2.93  
     Discontinued operations -  -  .09  -  -  
     Net income $      1.70  $      2.79  $      1.84  $      1.85  $      2.93  

Book value per common share (at end of year) $    26.44  $    26.09  $    25.10  $    25.33  $    26.51  
Dividends per common share $      2.60  $      2.60  $      2.56  $      2.45  $      2.12  
Weighted average shares outstanding: 
     Basic 11,270  10,224  9,312  9,339  9,825  
     Diluted 11,478  10,453  9,480  9,442  9,926  
Balance Sheet Data:
     Office and parking investments, net of depreciation $820,807  $728,695  $706,551  $795,860  $596,109  
     Real estate equity securities -  -  -  -  23,281  
     Investment in unconsolidated joint ventures 25,294  20,026  15,640  412  384  
     Total assets 931,188  802,308  763,937  840,612  655,237  
     Notes payable to banks 104,618  110,075  141,970  126,044  81,882  
     Mortgage notes payable 353,975  247,190  209,746  304,985  225,470  
     Total liabilities 511,802  394,287  387,116  465,031  329,488  
     Preferred stock 57,976  57,976  66,250  66,250  66,250  
     Convertible preferred stock 28,122  68,000  75,000  75,000  -  
     Stockholders' equity 415,648  407,980  376,821  375,581  325,749  
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BUSINESS 

Overview 

       Parkway Properties, Inc. ("Parkway" or the "Company") is a real estate investment trust ("REIT") specializing in the operations, acquisition, 
ownership, management, and leasing of office properties.  The Company is self-administered, in that it provides its own investment and 
administrative services internally through its own employees. The Company is also self-managed, as it internally provides the management, 
maintenance and other real estate services that its properties require through its own employees, such as property managers and engineers and 
in some cases, leasing professionals.  In addition Parkway is self-leased for renewal leases for the majority of its office property portfolio.  The 
Company is geographically focused on the Southeastern and Southwestern United States and Chicago.  Parkway and its predecessors have 
been public companies engaged in the real estate business since 1971, and its present senior management has been with Parkway since the 
1980's.  The management team has had experience managing a public real estate company through all phases of the real estate business cycle. 
At January 1, 2005, Parkway owned or had an interest in 62 office properties located in 11 states with an aggregate of approximately 11.6 million 
square feet of leasable space. 

       Parkway evaluates individual office assets for purchase considering a number of factors such as current market rents, vacancy rates and 
capitalization rates.  As part of this strategy, since July 1995, the Company has (i) completed the acquisition of 69 office properties, 
encompassing 12.2 million net rentable square feet, for a total purchase price of $1.2 billion; (ii) sold or is in the process of selling all of its 
non-core assets; (iii) sold 12 office properties, encompassing approximately 1.3 million net rentable square feet primarily in markets that posed 
increasing risks and redeployed these funds; (iv) sold joint venture interests in seven office properties encompassing 2.3 million net rentable 
square feet; and (v) implemented self-management and self-leasing at most of its properties to promote a focus on customer retention and 
superior service in meeting the needs of its customers.  Parkway defines total investment in office properties as purchase price plus estimated 
closing costs and anticipated capital expenditures during the first 24 months of ownership for tenant improvements, commissions, upgrades 
and capital improvements to bring the building up to the Company's standards. 

Industry Segments

       Parkway’s primary business is the ownership and operation of office properties. The Company accounts for each office property or groups 
of related office properties as an individual operating segment.  Parkway has aggregated its individual operating segments into a single reporting 
segment due to the fact that the individual operating segments have similar operating and economic characteristics.    

       The individual operating segments exhibit similar economic characteristics such as being leased by the square foot, sharing the same 
primary operating expenses and ancillary revenue opportunities and being cyclical in the economic performance based on current supply and 
demand conditions.  The individual operating segments are also similar in that revenues are derived from the leasing of office space to 
customers and each office property is managed and operated consistently in accordance with Parkway’s standard operating procedures.  The 
range and type of customer uses of our properties is similar throughout our portfolio regardless of location or class of building and the needs 
and priorities of our customers do not vary from building to building.  Therefore, Parkway’s management responsibilities do not vary from 
location to location based on the size of the building, geographic location or class. 

Operating Properties 

Parkway generally seeks to acquire and operate well-located Class A, A- or B+ (as classified within their respective markets) multi-story 
office buildings which are located in primary or secondary markets in the Southeastern and Southwestern United States and Chicago, ranging in 
size from 100,000 to 1,500,000 net rentable square feet and which have current and projected occupancy levels in excess of 70% and 
adequate parking to accommodate full occupancy  The Company targets buildings which are occupied by a major customer that accounts for at 
least 30% of the building's total rental revenue and has at least five years remaining on its lease.  Parkway's focus on new property acquisitions is 
on higher barrier-to-entry sub-markets in both central business districts and suburban markets.  Parkway strives to purchase office buildings at 
minimum initial unleveraged annual yields on its total investment of 8%.  The Company defines initial unleveraged yield as net operating income 
("NOI") divided by total investment (as previously defined), where NOI represents budgeted cash operating income for the current year at 
current occupancy rates and at rental rates currently in place with no adjustments for anticipated expense savings, increases in rental rates, 
additional leasing or straight line rent.  The Company also generally seeks to acquire properties whose total investment per net rentable square 
foot is at least 20% below estimated replacement cost.  Although the Company seeks to acquire properties which meet all of the acquisition 
criteria, specific property acquisitions are evaluated individually and may fail to meet one or more of the acquisition criteria at the date of 
purchase. 

       During 2004, the Company acquired three office properties with approximately 897,000 net rentable square feet for a total purchase 
price of $150 million, or approximately $167 per net rentable square foot.  The properties purchased are located in Orlando, Atlanta and 
Phoenix.  Consistent with the qualification requirements of a REIT, the Company intends to hold and operate its portfolio of office buildings 
for investment purposes, but may determine to sell properties that no longer meet its investment criteria. 

Dispositions 

       Parkway has also pursued a strategy of liquidating its non-core assets and office building investments that no longer meet the Company's 
investment criteria and/or the Company has determined value will be maximized by selling and redeploying the proceeds. The Company 
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routinely evaluates changes in market conditions that indicate an opportunity or need to sell properties within those markets in order to 
maximize shareholder value and allocate capital judiciously. 

       Since January 1, 1995, Parkway has sold non-core assets with a book value of approximately $45 million for approximately $68 million, 
resulting in an aggregate gain for financial reporting purposes of approximately $23 million.  The book value of all remaining non-office building 
real estate assets, all of which are available for sale, was $3.5 million as of December 31, 2004. 

Since January 1, 1998, the Company has sold 12 office properties, encompassing approximately 1.3 million net rentable square feet for net 
proceeds of $128 million, resulting in aggregate gains for financial reporting purposes of $18 million.  Currently, the Company is considering 
the sale of its property in Greenville, South Carolina, primarily because the Company does not own sufficient office space in this market to 
justify self-management and self-leasing.  This investment decision will be based upon the Company's analysis of existing markets and 
competing investment opportunities. 

Joint Ventures and Discretionary Fund 

       Parkway intends to continue forming joint ventures or partnerships with select investors.  Under the terms of the joint venture agreements, 
Parkway will operate, manage, and lease the properties on a day-to-day basis, provide acquisition and construction management services to the 
joint venture, and receive fees for providing these services.  The joint venture will arrange first mortgage financing which will be non-recourse, 
property specific debt.  To date, Parkway has entered into four joint venture agreements of this nature. 

On December 14, 2004, Parkway sold an 80% interest in three assets to Rubicon America Trust, an Australian listed trust, which is advised 
by the Greenwich Group International (the “Rubicon Joint Venture”).  The properties included in the 550,000 square foot venture are 
Lakewood and Falls Pointe in Atlanta and Carmel Crossing in Charlotte. The sale values the properties at a total of $66.7 million, which 
equates to $121 per square foot. Parkway recognized a net acquisition fee of approximately $2 million in addition to the sales price and 
recorded a gain on the sale of $3.5 million in the fourth quarter. Parkway Realty Services will continue to manage, lease and operate the 
buildings.  The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method of accounting. 

       Simultaneous with closing the Rubicon Joint Venture, the entity that owns the properties closed a $52 million mortgage secured by the 
properties.  The non-recourse first mortgage has a fixed interest rate of 4.86%, is interest only for the first four years, amortizes over 30 years 
thereafter and matures in seven years. Greenwich Group International acted as placement agent for the debt. Parkway received net cash 
proceeds from the sale and the financing of approximately $58 million, which was used to reduce short-term borrowings under the Company’s 
lines of credit.  Parkway’s share of the venture’s debt is 13.85%, which is included in the calculation of the ratio of debt to total market 
capitalization. Also, simultaneous with closing, the Company repaid the outstanding $4.5 million first mortgage on its Lakewood asset at a 
prepayment premium of $381,000.  

       The Company has begun efforts to form a discretionary fund, which would acquire office properties similar to those currently held in the 
portfolio. The targeted size of the fund is $500 million comprised of $300 million in debt and $200 million of equity. The Company may 
contribute approximately $50 million to the equity of the fund. Targeted potential investors are institutions, pension funds, state retirement 
systems and endowments. The Company would generate additional economic returns through the asset, property and construction 
management fees and the leasing commissions. There is no assurance that the Company will be successful in its efforts to raise a fund, and 
even if it is successful, the economic benefits will most likely not be realized until 2006 or beyond.  

Self-Management, Self-Leasing and Third Party Management 

       The Company self-manages approximately 99.3% of its current portfolio on a net rentable square footage basis. In addition, the Company 
self-leases for renewals and currently self-leases approximately 87.6% of its portfolio on a net rentable square footage basis.  For new tenant 
leasing, which is a smaller portion of our business, we fully cooperate with the third party brokerage community.  The Company benefits from a 
fully integrated management infrastructure, provided by its wholly-owned management subsidiary, Parkway Realty Services LLC ("Parkway 
Realty").  The Company believes self-management and self-leasing results in better customer service, higher customer retention and allows 
the Company to enhance stockholder value through the application of its hands-on operating style.  In order to provide exceptional customer 
service, Parkway is focused on hiring, training and retaining talented employees.  The Company believes that its focus on customer retention 
will benefit the Company and its stockholders by maintaining a stabilized revenue stream and avoiding higher capital expenditures and leasing 
commissions associated with new leases.  In order to self-manage properties, the Company seeks to reach critical mass in terms of square 
footage. Critical mass varies from market to market and is generally defined by the Company as owning or managing a minimum of 250,000 
square feet.  The Company is considering the sale of its properties that are not self-managed because the inability to self-manage these 
properties limits the Company's ability to apply its hands-on operating strategy. In addition to its owned properties, Parkway Realty currently 
manages and/or leases approximately 2.8 million net rentable square feet for third-party owners (including joint venture interests).  The 
Company intends to expand its third party fee business through the joint ventures and the proposed fund(s). 

Financing Strategy 

       The Company expects to continue seeking fixed rate, non-recourse mortgage financing with maturities from five to ten years typically 
amortizing over 25 to 30 years on select office building investments as additional capital is needed.  The Company targets a debt to total 
market capitalization ratio at a percentage in the mid-40’s. This ratio may vary at times pending the timing of acquisitions, sales and/or sales of 
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equity securities.  In addition, volatility in the price of the Company's common stock may affect the debt to total market capitalization ratio. 
However, over time the Company plans to maintain a percentage in the mid-40’s.  The Company monitors interest and fixed charge coverage 
ratios.  See "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations – Financial Condition."  Parkway has no 
present plans to issue senior securities.  Should the opportunity present itself, Parkway has the ability to issue common stock periodically 
through its dividend reinvestment plan. 

       Parkway may, in appropriate circumstances, acquire one or more properties in exchange for Parkway's equity securities.  Parkway may 
provide financing in connection with sales of property if market conditions so require, but it does not presently intend to make other loans. 
Parkway has no set policy as to the amount or percentage of its assets which may be invested in any specific property.  Rather than a specific 
policy, Parkway evaluates each property in terms of whether and to what extent the property meets Parkway's investment criteria and strategic 
objectives. Parkway has no present intentions of underwriting securities of other issuers.  The strategies and policies set forth above were 
determined, and are subject to review by, Parkway's Board of Directors which may change such strategies or policies based upon their 
evaluation of the state of the real estate market, the performance of Parkway's assets, capital and credit market conditions, and other relevant 
factors.  Parkway provides annual reports to its stockholders that contain financial statements audited by Parkway's independent public 
accountants. 

Management Team 

       Parkway's management team consists of experienced office property specialists with proven capabilities in office property (i) operations; 
(ii) leasing; (iii) management; (iv) acquisition/disposition; (v) financing; (vi) capital allocation; and (vii) re-positioning.  Parkway's eleven 
senior officers have an average of over 21 years of real estate industry experience, and have worked together at Parkway for an average of over 14 
years.  Management has developed a highly service-oriented operating culture and believes that its focus on operations, proactive leasing, 
property management and asset management activities will result in higher customer retention and occupancy and will continue to translate 
into enhanced stockholder value. 

Administration 

       The Company is self-administered and self-managed and maintains its principal executive offices in Jackson, Mississippi.  As of January 1,
2005, the Company had 252 employees.  The operations of the Company are conducted from approximately 13,000 square feet of office 
space located at 188 East Capitol Street, One Jackson Place, Suite 1000, Jackson, Mississippi.  The building is owned by Parkway and is leased 
by Parkway at market rental rates. 

CEO and CFO Certifications 

       Steven G. Rogers, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and Marshall A. Loeb, Executive Vice President and Chief 
Financial Officer of the Company, have issued the certifications required by Sections 302 and 906 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and 
applicable SEC regulations with respect to he Company’s Annual Report on From 10-K, including the financial statements provided in this 
Report.  Among other matters required to be included in those certifications, Mr. Roges and Mr. Loeb have each certified that, to the best of 
his knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in the Annual Report on From 10-K, fairly present in all 
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Company as of, and for, the periods presented.  See 
Exhibits 31 and 32 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 for the complete Section 302 and 
906 Certifications, respectively. 

       In addition, Mr. Rogers submitted his annual certification to the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) on March 4, 2005, stating he was not 
aware of any violation by the Company of the NYSE corporate governance listing standards, as required by Section 303A.12(a) of the NYSE 
Listed Company Manual. 

Available Information 

Parkway makes available free of charge on the “Investor Relations” page of its web site, www.pky.com, its filed and furnished reports on 
Form 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K and all amendments thereto, as soon as reasonably practicable after Parkway electronically files such material with, 
or furnishes it to, the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

       The Company’s Corporate Governance Guidelines, Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and the Charters of the Audit Committee, 
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee and Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors are available on the “Investor 
Relations” page of Parkway’s web site.  Copies of these documents are also available free of charge in print upon written request addressed to 
Investor Relations, Parkway Properties, Inc., One Jackson Place Suite 1000, 188 East Capitol Street, Jackson, Mississippi 39201-2195. 

Recent Developments 

On January 5, 2005, the Company entered into an agreement to purchase the 70% interest held by Investcorp International, Inc., its joint 
venture partner, in the property known as 233 North Michigan Avenue in Chicago, Illinois. The terms of the agreement place total building 
value at $194.3 million or $182 per square foot. The Company will close the investment in two stages. The Company closed 90% of the 
purchase on January 14, 2005. The second closing for the remainder of Investcorp’s interest will occur following lender and rating agency 
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approval, which is expected within ninety days. At closing, the Company earned a $400,000 incentive fee from Investcorp based upon the 
economic returns generated over the life of the partnership. The purchase was funded with proceeds from the sale of 1.6 million shares of 
common stock to Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. on January 10, 2005 and the assumption of an existing first mortgage on the property. 

The 70% interest in 233 North Michigan Avenue was acquired subject to an existing non-recourse first mortgage with an outstanding 
balance of approximately $100 million, which matures July 2011 and carries a fixed interest rate of 7.21%. In accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, the mortgage will be recorded at approximately $112 million to reflect the fair value of the financial instrument based on 
the market rate of 4.94% on the date of purchase.  

On January 10, 2005, the Company sold 1,600,000 shares of common stock to Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. The Company used the net 
proceeds of approximately $76 million towards the acquisition of the 70% interest held by its joint venture partner in the property known as 
233 North Michigan Avenue in Chicago, IL and to reduce outstanding variable rate debt. 

In early March 2005, the Company expects, subject to the completion of due diligence, to purchase for approximately $29.3 million two 
adjacent buildings in downtown Jacksonville, Florida. In addition to the purchase price the Company expects to invest an additional $4.3 
million in improvements.  The buildings, which total 305,000 square feet, are approximately 93% leased. The purchase will be funded via the 
remaining proceeds from the Company’s January 2005 equity offering as well as its existing line of credit.  

PROPERTIES 

General 

       The Company operates and invests principally in office properties in the Southeastern and Southwestern United States and Chicago, but is 
not limited to any specific geographical region or property type.  As of January 1, 2005, the Company owned or had an interest in 62 office 
properties comprising approximately 11.6 million square feet of office space located in 11 states. 

       Property acquisitions in 2004, 2003 and 2002 were funded through a variety of sources, including: 

a. Cash reserves and cash generated from operating activities, 

b. Sales of non-core assets, 

c. Sales of office properties, 

d. Sales of joint venture interests, 

e. Fixed rate, non-recourse mortgage financing with maturities ranging from five to ten years, 

f. Assumption of existing fixed rate, non-recourse mortgages on properties purchased, 

g. Sales of Parkway preferred and common stock,  

h. Advances on bank lines of credit, and  

i. Issuances of preferred membership interests to sellers. 

Office Buildings 

       Other than as discussed under “Business", the Company intends to hold and operate its portfolio of office buildings for investment 
purposes.  The Company does not propose any program for the renovation, improvement or development of any of the office buildings, except 
as called for under the renewal of existing leases or the signing of new leases or improvements necessary to upgrade recent acquisitions to the 
Company's operating standards. During 2004, the Company began development of a $6.9 million, 517 space parking facility to accommodate 
building customers at City Centre in Jackson, Mississippi.  All such improvements are expected to be financed by cash flow from the portfolio 
of office properties and advances on bank lines of credit.    

       In the opinion of management, all properties are adequately covered by insurance.   

       All office building investments compete for customers with similar properties located within the same market primarily on the basis of 
location, rent charged, services provided and the design and condition of the improvements.  The Company also competes with other REITs, 
financial institutions, pension funds, partnerships, individual investors and others when attempting to acquire office properties. 
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       The following table sets forth certain information about office properties the Company owned or had an interest in as of January 1, 2005: 

Estimated 
Average % of

 Number Total Net % of Average Market Leases % 
Of Rentable Total Net Rent Per Rent Per Expiring Leased 

 Office Square Feet Rentable Square Square In As of 
Location Properties(1) (in thousands) Feet Foot (2) Foot (3) 2005 (4) 1/1/2005 

Houston, TX 15 2,242 19.4% $17.70 $16.53 19.9% 94.5% 
Atlanta, GA 9 1,377 11.9% 21.10 20.45 11.9% 92.1% 
Chicago, IL 1 1,070 9.3% 33.48 31.50 1.0% 93.5% 
Phoenix, AZ 3 871 7.5% 24.04 20.43 12.0% 95.4% 
Columbia, SC 3 867 7.5% 16.62 16.28 24.6% 89.2% 
Memphis, TN 4 848 7.3% 19.28 17.47 12.6% 84.1% 
Jackson, MS 5 843 7.3% 17.66 17.46 23.8% 80.0% 
Knoxville, TN 2 545 4.7% 14.50 16.00 17.9% 94.1% 
Charlotte, NC 2 511 4.4% 17.66 15.92 7.8% 80.2% 
Richmond, VA 6 498 4.3% 16.82 15.97 19.0% 86.4% 
Orlando, FL 2 461 4.0% 21.70 20.13 23.9% 97.3% 
Nashville, TN 1 430 3.7% 13.49 16.75 19.6% 94.3% 
Hampton Roads, VA 3 386 3.3% 16.56 15.29 6.4% 90.6% 
St. Petersburg, FL 2 321 2.8% 18.02 17.22 16.9% 96.2% 
Ft. Lauderdale, FL 2 215 1.9% 21.87 20.47 19.2% 93.3% 
All Others 2 78 0.7% 11.02 11.23 4.2% 100.0% 

62 11,563 100.0% $19.92 $18.94 15.6% 91.0% 

(1) Includes 54 office properties owned directly; a 32,000 square foot office property in which the Company owns a 50% interest located in 
New Orleans, Louisiana; a 1,070,000 square foot office property in which the Company owns a 30% interest located in Chicago, Illinois; a 
481,000 square foot office property in which the Company owns a 30% interest located in Phoenix, Arizona; two office properties totaling 
170,000 square feet in which the Company owns a 20% interest located in Jackson, Mississippi; and three office properties totaling 550,000 
square feet in which the Company owns a 20% interest located in Atlanta, Georgia and Charlotte, North Carolina. 

(2) Average rent per square foot is defined as the weighted average current gross rental rate including expense escalations for leased office 
space in the building as of January 1, 2005. 

(3) Estimated average market rent per square foot is based upon information obtained from (i) the Company's own experience in leasing 
space at the properties; (ii) leasing agents in the relevant markets with respect to quoted rental rates and completed leasing transactions for 
comparable properties in the relevant markets; and (iii) publicly available data with respect thereto.  Estimated average market rent is weighted 
by the net rentable square feet expiring in each property. 

(4) The percentage of leases expiring in 2005 represents the ratio of square feet under leases expiring in 2005 divided by total net rentable 
square feet. 

       The following table sets forth scheduled lease expirations for properties owned as of January 1, 2005 on leases executed as of January 1, 
2005, assuming no customer exercises renewal options: 

Net Annualized Weighted Weighted Est 
Rentable Percent of Rental Expiring Gross Avg Market 

Year of Number Square Feet Total Net Amount Rental Rate Per Rent Per Net 
Lease of Expiring Rentable Expiring (1) Net Rentable Rentable 

Expiration Leases (in thousands) Square Feet (in thousands) Square Foot (2) Square Foot (3) 
2005 354 1,798 15.5% $  34,156 $19.00 $17.58 
2006 244 1,209 10.5% 24,341 20.13 18.16 
2007 247 1,395 12.1% 26,957 19.32 17.36 
2008 152 1,277 11.0% 22,968 17.99 17.31 
2009 156 1,691 14.6% 36,387 21.52 21.17 

Thereafter 164 3,152 27.3% 64,819 20.57 20.19 
1,317 10,522 91.0% $209,628 $19.92 $18.94 

(1)    Annualized rental amount expiring is defined as net rentable square feet expiring multiplied by the weighted average expiring annual rental 
rate per net rentable square foot. 

(2)    Weighted average expiring gross rental rate is the weighted average rental rate including expense escalations for office space. 
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(3) Estimated average market rent is based upon information obtained from (i) the Company’s own experience in leasing space at the 
properties: (ii) leasing agents in the relevant markets with respect to quoted rental rates and completed leasing transactions for comparable 
properties in the relevant markets; and (iii) publicly available data with respect thereto.  Estimated average market rent is weighted by the net 
rentable square feet expiring in each property. 

       Fixed-rate mortgage notes payable total $353,975,000 at December 31, 2004 and are secured by 32 properties in various markets with 
interest rates ranging from 3.67% to 8.25%.  Maturity dates on these mortgage notes payable range from August 2007 to October 2019 on 14 
to 30 year amortizations.  See Note E – “Notes Payable” to the consolidated financial statements. 

The majority of the Company’s fixed rate secured debt contains prepayment provisions based on the greater of a yield maintenance penalty 
or 1.0% of the outstanding loan amount.  The yield maintenance penalty essentially compensates the lender for the difference between the 
fixed rate under the loan and the yield that the lender would receive if the lender reinvested the prepaid loan balance in U.S. Treasury 
Securities with a similar maturity as the loan. 

Customers 

       The office properties are leased to approximately 1,317 customers, which are in a wide variety of industries including government agencies, 
banking, professional services (including legal, accounting, and consulting), energy, financial services and telecommunications.  The following 
table sets forth information concerning the 25 largest customers of the properties owned directly or through joint ventures as of January 1, 
2005 (in thousands, except square foot data): 

Annualized Lease 
 Square Rental Expiration 

Customer Feet Revenue (1) Office Property Date 
Blue Cross Blue Shield of Georgia 265,446 $  7,021 Capital City Plaza  (2) 
General Services Administration (GSA) 365,238 4,944 (3) (3) 
Regions Financial Corporation 215,526 4,558 Morgan Keegan Tower 09/07 
Cox Enterprises 210,820 4,044 (4) (4) 
South Carolina State Government 226,397 3,979 (5) (5) 
Nabors Industries/Nabors Corporate Services 173,398 3,634 One Commerce Green (6) 
Bank of America, NA 263,439 3,064 (7) (7) 
Schlumberger Technology 155,324 2,806 Schlumberger (8) 
Honeywell 142,464 2,762 Honeywell Building 07/08 
Progress Energy 133,279 2,446 Central Station 05/08 
General Electric 111,525 2,428 (9) (9) 
Akerman, Senterfitt & Eidson, PA 90,046 2,140 Citrus Center (10) 
DHL Airways 98,649 1,888 One Commerce Green 11/05 
MeadWestvaco Corporation 100,457 1,809 Westvaco Building 01/06 
Charles Schwab & Co. 82,548 1,765 (11) (11) 
PGS Tensor Geophysical, Inc. 91,960 1,730 Tensor Building 03/05 
Forman, Perry, Watkins, Krutz & Tardy 94,868 1,716 (12) (12) 
First Tennessee Bank, NA 111,756 1,580 First Tennessee Plaza (13) 
URS Corporation 56,164 1,467 Squaw Peak Corporate Center 11/08 
Viad Corporation 158,222 1,410 Viad Corporate Center (14) 
Louisiana-Pacific Corporation 76,861 1,300 Bank of America Plaza 12/15 
Young & Rubicam 122,078 1,274 233 North Michigan (15) 
United Healthcare Services 102,177 1,253 (16) (16) 
Lennar Homes of Texas 55,643 1,183 550 Greens Parkway 10/09 
Boult, Cummings, Conners, & Berry, PLLC 79,086 1,107 Bank of America Plaza (17) 

3,583,371 $63,308 
Total Rental Square Footage (1) 11,562,590  
Total Annualized Rental Revenue (1) $165,368  

(1) Annualized Rental Revenue represents the gross rental rate (including escalations) per square foot as of January 1, 2005, multiplied by the 
number of square feet leased by the customer.  Annualized rent for customers in unconsolidated joint ventures is calculated based on Parkway’s 
ownership interest.  However, leased square feet represents 100% of square feet leased through direct ownership or through joint ventures. 

(2)    Blue Cross Blue Shield of Georgia, Inc. occupies 265,446 square feet expiring in June 2014 with a cancellation option in June 2012. 
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(3)    GSA leases 365,238 square feet in 13 properties under separate leases that expire as follows: 

Lease 
 Square Expiration 

Office Property Feet Date 

233 North Michigan 189,316 11/09* 
One Jackson Place 25,726 07/10 
Moorefield I and II 24,461 06/05 
First Tennessee Plaza 22,069 03/08 
Carmel Crossing 21,384 05/10 
Carmel Crossing 20,618 09/12 
Falls Building 20,051 01/13 
Greenbrier II 13,971 01/10 
Morgan Keegan Tower 8,603 06/13 
City Centre 5,471 10/12 
Moorefield III 5,370 03/05 
Town Point Center 5,155 11/11 
111 Capitol Building  3,043 04/14 

365,238  

*Cancellation option in 11/06, limited to 33,609 square feet. 

(4)    Cox Enterprises, Inc. leases 210,820 square feet and the leases expire as follows: 

Lease 
 Square Expiration 

Office Property Feet Date 
Peachtree Dunwoody Pavilion 96,757 08/10 
Peachtree Dunwoody Pavilion 72,137 12/08 
Peachtree Dunwoody Pavilion 22,990 09/10* 
Moorefield I 18,936 06/10 

210,820  

*Cancellation option beginning in 12/04. 

(5)    South Carolina State Government Agencies lease 226,397 square feet and the leases expire as follows: 

Lease 
 Square Expiration 

Office Property Feet Date 
Capitol Center 159,303 06/05* 
Capitol Center 46,902 06/09   
Capitol Center 15,711 06/11   
Atrium at Stoneridge 4,481 04/05 

226,397  

*Cancellation option available every June 30th. 

(6) Nabors Industries/Nabors Corporate Services occupies 173,398 square feet expiring in December 2007 with a cancellation option 
beginning December 31, 2006. 

(7) Bank of America, NA leases 263,439 square feet in two properties under separate leases that expire as follows: 180,530 square feet in 
March 2012 at Bank of America Plaza in Nashville, TN and 82,909 square feet in June 2006 at Bank of America Tower in Columbia, SC. 

(8)    Schlumberger Technology leases 155,324 square feet expiring in April 2007 with a cancellation option beginning May 1, 2003, with 
twelve months written notice. 

(9) General Electric occupies 111,525 square feet in two properties under separate leases that expire as follows: 91,200 square feet in April 2015 at 
Toyota Center and 20,325 square feet in April 2008 at Charlotte Park with a cancellation option in May 2006. 

(10) Akerman, Senterfitt & Edison, PA leases 90,046 square feet expiring as follows:  67,979 square feet in December 2005, 17,186 square feet in 
March 2008 and 4,881 square feet in February 2008.  
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(11) Charles Schwab & Co. leases 82,548 square feet in two properties under separate leases that expire as follows: 79,223 square feet in November 
2010 at Maitland 200 and 3,325 square feet in August 2005 at Citrus Center. 

(12) Forman, Perry, Watkins, Krutz & Tardy (“FPWKT”) leases 94,868 square feet expiring as follows:  69,341 square feet in December 2008 in One 
Jackson Place, 14,903 square feet in December 2011 in City Centre and 10,624 square feet in July 2009 in 1717 St. James with a cancellation option 
after July 2006.  Subsequent to January 1, 2004, FPWKT signed a lease for 159,000 square feet in City Centre commencing upon completion of the 
improvements to the space between August 2004 and May 2005.  FPWKT will occupy the space through December 31, 2011, subject to certain 
termination rights beginning July 2007.  The firm is consolidating employees from two buildings in Jackson, Mississippi and will vacate 69,341 square 
feet in One Jackson Place. 

(13) First Tennessee Bank leases 111,756 square feet expiring in September 2014.  The lease contains two, one-time contraction options in October 
2006 and October 2008 for approximately 17,000 square feet each.   

(14) Viad Corporation leases 158,222 square feet in the Viad Corporate Center under separate leases that expire as follows:  156,364 square feet in 
August 2011 and 1,858 square feet in April 2008. 

(15) Young & Rubicam leases 122,078 square feet expiring in November 2011 with a cancellation option beginning in November 2006, limited to 
34,000 square feet.  

(16) United Healthcare Services leases 102,177 square feet expiring as follows:  100,542 square feet in November 2009 in 233 North Michigan with a 
cancellation option on 67,131 square feet at any time with written notice; and 1,635 square feet in December 2006 in Cedar Ridge.   

(17) Boult, Cummings, Conners & Berry, PLLC leases 98,813 square feet expiring in May 2009.  The lease contains a cancellation option if Bank of
America relocates and for any other reason in each of the first three years following September 2002. 

Non-Core Assets

       Since January 1, 1995, Parkway has pursued a strategy of liquidating its non-core assets and using the proceeds from such sales to acquire 
office properties, pay down short-term debt and repurchase its own stock. The Company defines non-core assets as all assets other than office 
and parking properties, which at December 31, 2004 consisted of undeveloped land.  The book value of all remaining non-office building real 
estate assets, all of which are for sale, was $3,528,000 as of December 31, 2004 with a carrying cost of approximately $30,000 annually.   

Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities 

The Company’s common stock ($.001 par value) is listed and trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “PKY”.  The
number of record holders of the Company’s common stock at January 1, 2005, was approximately 2,788. 

As of March 1, 2005, the last reported sales price per common share on the New York Stock Exchange was $47.83. The following table 
sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low last reported sales prices per share of the Company’s common stock and the per share 
cash distributions paid by Parkway during each quarter. 

 Year Ended Year Ended 
December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003 

Quarter Ended     High Low Distributions     High Low Distributions 
March 31 $47.95 $41.95 $  .65 $37.80 $33.37 $  .65 
June 30 47.35 37.65 .65 42.05 37.85 .65 
September 30 48.13 42.85 .65 45.22 42.53 .65 
December 31 51.36 46.52 .65 45.30 41.30 .65 

$2.60 $2.60 

       Common stock distributions during 2004 and 2003 ($2.60 per share) were taxable as follows for federal income tax purposes: 

Year Ended 
December 31 

2004 2003 
Ordinary income $2.00 $2.32 
Post May 5, 2003 capital gain .04 .16 
Unrecaptured Section 1250 gain .14 .12 
Return of capital .42 - 

$2.60 $2.60 
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       Additionally, through the Company’s Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan (“DRIP Plan”), 296,173 common shares were sold 
during 2004.  Net proceeds received on the issuance of shares were $11,515,000, which equates to an average net price per share of $38.88 at 
a discount of 2.3%.  The proceeds were used to reduce amounts outstanding under the Company’s short-term lines of credit. 

The following table shows the high and low Series D preferred share prices and per share distributions paid for each quarter of 2004 
reported by the New York Stock Exchange. 

Year Ended Year Ended 
December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003 

Quarter Ended High Low Distributions  High Low Distributions 
March 31 $27.90 $26.35 $  .50 $        - $        - $    -  
June 30 26.75 24.75 .50 26.60 26.60 .02 
September 30 26.65 25.41 .50 27.00 25.75 .50 
December 31 26.65 25.74 .50 26.75 25.98 .50 

$2.00 $1.02 

As of January 1, 2005, there were approximately 6 holders of record of the Company's 2,400,000 outstanding shares of Series D preferred 
stock.  Series D preferred stock distributions during 2004 and 2003 were taxable as follows for federal income tax purposes: 

Year Ended December 31 
2004 2003 

Ordinary income $1.86 $1.01 
Post May 5, 2003 capital gain .03 .01 
Unrecaptured Section 1250 gain .11 - 

$2.00 $1.02 

In 2001, the Company issued 2,142,857 shares of 8.34% Series B Cumulative Convertible Preferred stock to Rothschild/Five Arrows.  In 
addition to the issuance of Series B preferred stock, Parkway issued a warrant to Five Arrows to purchase 75,000 shares of the Company’s 
common stock at a price of $35 for a period of seven years. During 2004, 1,139,358 shares of Series B preferred stock were converted into 
1,139,358 shares of Parkway common stock.  As of December 31, 2004, there were 803,499 shares of Series B preferred stock outstanding.  
Dividends of $5,186,000 and $6,091,000 were declared on the stock in 2004 and 2003, respectively.  There is no public market for 
Parkway’s Series B Cumulative Convertible Preferred stock.   

Equity Compensation Plans 

       The following table sets forth the securities authorized for issuance under Parkway's equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2004: 
 (a) (b) (c) 

Number of securities 
remaining available for 
future issuance under 

Number of securities to Weighted-average equity compensation 
be issued upon exercise exercise price of plans (excluding 
of outstanding options, outstanding options, securities reflected in 

Plan category warrants and rights warrants and rights column (a) 
Equity compensation plans  ` 
approved by security holders 485,644 $30.92 309,209 

Equity compensation plans  
not approved by security holders - - - 

Total 485,644 $30.92 309,209 

       Effective January 1, 2003, the stockholders of the Company approved Parkway’s 2003 Equity Incentive Plan that authorized the grant of up 
to 200,000 equity based awards to employees of the Company.  At present, it is Parkway’s intention to grant restricted stock and/or deferred 
incentive share units instead of stock options to employees of the Company, although the 2003 Plan authorizes various forms of incentive 
awards, including options.  As of December 31, 2004, 143,500 shares of incentive restricted stock have been issued to certain officers of the 
Company in connection with the VALUE2 plan.  The restricted shares issued are valued at $5,162,000, and vest at the end of 7 years or 
December 31, 2005 if certain goals of the VALUE2 plan are achieved.  Additionally, 9,487 deferred incentive share units were granted to 
employees of the Company.   The deferred incentive share units are valued at $436,000, and vest at the end of 4 years.  Compensation 
expense related to the restricted stock and deferred incentive share units of $783,000 and $694,000 was recognized in 2004 and 2003, 
respectively. 
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Purchase of Equity Securities 

      Currently, Parkway does not have an authorized share repurchase program and did not purchase any Parkway common stock during 2004.  In 
2003, 10,830 shares were purchased at an average price per share of $33.76. 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION 

Overview 

       Parkway is a self-administered and self-managed REIT specializing in the acquisition, operations and leasing of office properties.  The 
Company is geographically focused on the Southeastern and Southwestern United States and Chicago.  As of January 1, 2005 Parkway owned 
or had an interest in 62 office properties located in eleven states with an aggregate of approximately 11.6 million square feet of leasable space. 
The Company generates revenue primarily by leasing office space to its customers and providing management and leasing services to third-party 
office property owners (including joint venture interests).  The primary drivers behind Parkway’s revenues are occupancy, rental rates and 
customer retention.   

Occupancy.  Parkway’s revenues are dependent on the occupancy of its office buildings. As a result of job losses and over supply of office 
properties, vacancy rates increased nationally and in Parkway’s markets.  The office sector is beginning to recover from high vacancy rates due 
to an improving economy.  As of January 1, 2005, occupancy of Parkway’s office portfolio was 91.0% compared to 90.7% as of October 1, 2004 
and 87.9% as of January 1, 2004.  Not included in the January 1, 2005 occupancy rate are 37 signed leases totaling 150,000 square feet, which 
commence during the first through third quarters of 2005 and will raise our percentage leased to 92.3%. To combat rising vacancy, Parkway 
utilizes innovative approaches to produce new leases.  These include the Broker Bill of Rights, a short-form lease and customer advocacy 
programs which are models in the industry and have helped the Company maintain occupancy around 90% during a time when the national 
occupancy rate is approximately 84%.  Parkway projects occupancy ranging from 91% to 94% during 2005 for its office properties.

Rental Rates.  An increase in vacancy rates has the effect of reducing market rental rates and vice versa.  Parkway’s leases typically have three to seven 
year terms.  As leases expire, the Company replaces the existing leases with new leases at the current market rental rate, which today is often lower 
than the existing lease rate.  Customer retention is increasingly important in controlling costs and preserving revenue.   

Customer Retention.  Keeping our existing customers is important as high customer retention leads to increased occupancy, less downtime 
between leases, and reduced leasing costs.  Parkway estimates that it costs five to six times more to replace an existing customer with a new 
one than to retain the customer.  In making this estimate, Parkway takes into account the sum of revenue lost during downtime on the space 
plus leasing costs, which rise as market vacancies increase.  Therefore, Parkway focuses a great deal of energy on customer retention.  
Parkway's operating philosophy is based on the premise that we are in the customer retention business.  Parkway seeks to retain its customers by 
continually focusing on operations at its office properties.  The Company believes in providing superior customer service; hiring, training, 
retaining and empowering each employee; and creating an environment of open communication both internally and externally with our 
customers and our stockholders.  Over the past eight years, Parkway maintained an average 74.3% customer retention rate.  Parkway’s customer 
retention for the year ending December 31, 2004 was 69.8% compared to 58.1% for the year ending December 31, 2003.   

In 2003, customer retention was below the Company’s historical average primarily as a result of the loss of two major customers effective 
December 31, 2003:  Burlington Industries, which occupied 137,000 square feet at 400 North Belt in Houston, Texas and Skytel, a subsidiary of 
MCI/WorldCom, Inc. (“WorldCom”), which occupied 156,000 square feet at the Skytel Centre in Jackson, Mississippi. 

Subsequent to December 31, 2003, Parkway has leased approximately 86% of the former Burlington space at 400 North Belt to several 
customers including Cal Dive International, ECFMG, Grant Prideco and MMI.  This additional leasing has raised the occupancy at 400 
Northbelt to 88.4%.  Also subsequent to December 31, 2003, the Company renamed the Skytel Centre to City Centre, signed leases which 
raise the City Centre building occupancy to approximately 93.4% and began the development of a $6.9 million, 517-space parking facility to 
accommodate building customers.  The largest lease at City Centre was signed with Forman Perry Watkins Krutz & Tardy LLP for 159,000 
square feet, commencing upon completion of the improvements to the space between August 2004 and May 2005.  Forman Perry will occupy 
the space through December 31, 2011, subject to certain termination rights beginning July 2007.  The firm is consolidating employees from two 
buildings in Jackson and will vacate approximately 69,000 square feet in One Jackson Place, another Parkway-owned asset.  The other large 
new customers at City Centre include Entergy Mississippi, Inc. and Ross & Yerger, which leased 19,500 and 14,500 square feet, respectively. 

Strategic Planning.  For many years, Parkway has been engaged in a process of strategic planning and goal setting.  The material goals and 
objectives of Parkway's earlier strategic plans have been achieved, and benefited Parkway's stockholders through increased FFO and dividend 
payments per share.  Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted a three-year strategic plan referred to as VALUE2 (Value Square).  This 
plan reflects the employees’ commitment to create value for its shareholders while holding firm to the core values as espoused in the Parkway 
Commitment to Excellence.  The Company plans to create value by Venturing with best partners, Asset recycling, Leverage neutral growth, 
Uncompromising focus on operations and providing an Equity return to its shareholders that is 10% greater than that of its peer group, the 
National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts (“NAREIT”) office index.  Equity return is defined as growth in funds from operations 
(“FFO”) per diluted share. 
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The highlights of 2003 and 2004 reflect the strategy set forth in VALUE2 as described below: 

x Venture with Best Partners. During 2003 and 2004, we sold joint venture interests in six office properties.  Parkway
continues to evaluate its existing portfolio for joint venture candidates and anticipates joint venturing more properties, as well 
as purchasing new properties with the intention of joint venturing them. 

x Asset Recycling. In 2003, the Company sold one office property, while maintaining a 10-year non-cancelable management 
contract, and a .74 acre parcel of land.  Using the proceeds from the joint ventures, property sales, stock offerings and bank 
lines of credit, Parkway purchased four office buildings totaling $125 million in 2003 and three office buildings totaling $150
million in 2004. 

x Leverage Neutral Growth.  Parkway began 2003 with a debt to total market capitalization of 45% and operated 2003 and 
2004 at an average of 41%.  The decrease in debt to total market capitalization is a result of timing delays in reinvesting
proceeds from joint ventures, asset sales and stock offerings in addition to a rising stock price.  The Company anticipates that 
the debt to total market capitalization will average around 45% for the three years of VALUE2.  During 2003, the Company 
assumed one mortgage for $20 million in connection with the Citrus Center purchase in Orlando, closed four mortgages for
approximately $97 million, issued 690,000 common shares for a net $24 million, redeemed 2,650,000 shares of 8.75% 
Series A Preferred stock and issued 2.4 million shares of 8.0% Series D Preferred stock.   During 2004, Parkway assumed two 
mortgages totaling $78 million in connection with the Capital City Plaza purchase in Atlanta and the Squaw Peak Corporate 
Center purchase in Phoenix and placed three mortgages totaling $81 million. As of December 31, 2004, the Company’s debt-
to-total market capitalization ratio was 41.4% as compared to 46.1% as of September 30, 2004 and 41.2% as of December 31, 
2003. 

x Uncompromising Focus on Operations.  Recognizing that in this difficult real estate environment, operating efficiently and 
consistently is more important than ever, Parkway implemented the Uncompromising Focus on Operations (“UFO”) program 
in the first quarter of 2003, whereby Parkway’s Customer Advocate grades each property in all areas of consistency and high 
standards.  This is done in conjunction with the Customer Advocate interviews with each customer each year. Parkway 
continues to focus on the basics of our business:  customer retention, leasing, and controlling operating expenses and capital 
expenditures, to maintain our occupancy, all of which have the effect of maintaining and increasing net operating income.   

x Equity Returns to Shareholders 10% Greater than the NAREIT Office Index.  Parkway is two-thirds of the way through the 
VALUE2 plan and achieved this financial goal for the first two years of the plan.  FFO growth for the first 24 months of VALUE2 

was .9% for the Company, which exceeded the FFO growth of the NAREIT Office Index by more than 10%. 

Discretionary Fund.  The Company has begun efforts to form a discretionary fund, which would acquire office properties similar to those 
currently held in the portfolio. The targeted size of the fund is $500 million comprised of $300 million in debt and $200 million of equity. 
The Company may contribute approximately $50 million to the equity of the fund. Targeted potential investors are institutions, pension funds, 
state retirement systems and endowments. The Company would generate additional economic returns through the asset, property and
construction management fees and the leasing commissions. There is no assurance that the Company will be successful in its efforts to raise a 
fund, and even if it is successful, the economic benefits will most likely not be realized until 2006 or beyond.  

Financial Condition 

Comments are for the balance sheet dated December 31, 2004 compared to the balance sheet dated December 31, 2003. 

       Office and Parking Properties.  In 2004, Parkway continued the application of its strategy of operating and acquiring office properties, 
joint venturing interests in office assets, as well as liquidating non-core assets and office assets that no longer meet the Company's investment 
criteria and/or the Company has determined value will be maximized by selling.  During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company 
purchased three office properties, and sold a joint venture interest in three office properties.  Total assets increased $128,880,000, and office 
and parking properties and parking development (before depreciation) increased $119,545,000 or 14.2%. 

Purchases and Improvements 
       Parkway's direct investment in office and parking properties increased $92,112,000 net of depreciation, to a carrying amount of 
$820,807,000 at December 31, 2004 and consisted of 55 operating properties.  During the year ending December 31, 2004, Parkway 
purchased three office properties as follows (in thousands): 

Date Purchase 
Office Property Location Square Feet Purchased Price 

Maitland 200 Orlando, FL 203 01/29/04 $ 26,295 
Capital City Plaza (a) Atlanta, GA 407 04/02/04 76,330 
Squaw Peak Corporate Center (b) Phoenix, AZ 287 08/24/04 46,906 
Total  897  $149,531 
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(a) Parkway assumed a $43,692,000 first mortgage with a 6.75% interest rate as part of the Capital City Plaza purchase.  The mortgage has 
been recorded at $49,073,000 to reflect the fair value of the financial instrument based on the rate of 3.67% on the date of purchase. 

(b) Parkway assumed a $33,869,000 first mortgage with an 8.16% interest rate as part of the Squaw Peak Corporate Center purchase.  The 
mortgage has been recorded at $39,604,000 to reflect the fair value of the financial instrument based on the rate of 4.92% on the date of 
purchase. 

       During the year ending December 31, 2004, the Company capitalized building improvements, development costs and additional purchase 
expenses of $30,749,000 and recorded depreciation expense of $31,251,000 related to its office and parking properties. 

Investment in Unconsolidated Joint Ventures.  In accordance with the Company’s three-year strategic plan, VALUE2, Parkway is 
committed to forming joint ventures with best partners for the purpose of acquiring office assets in the Southeastern and Southwestern United 
States and Chicago.  We believe these investments result in a higher return on equity than 100% owned assets.  Parkway will operate, manage 
and lease the properties on a day-to-day basis, provide acquisition and construction management services to the joint venture, and receive fees 
for providing these services.   The joint venture partner will provide 70 to 80% of the joint venture capital, with Parkway to provide the balance. 
In 2004, investment in unconsolidated joint ventures increased $5,268,000 or 26.3%.  The primary reason for the increase is the result of 
Parkway entering into a joint venture agreement with respect to three office properties.  See detailed information regarding the 2004 joint 
venture transaction under the caption “Joint Ventures” appearing in “Business”.  The 2004 joint venture transaction is summarized in the 
following table (in thousands).

 Interest Square Date Gross Sales 
Property Sold Location Feet Sold Price 

Falls Point, Lakewood Atlanta, GA and 
and Carmel Crossing 80% Charlotte, NC 550 12/14/04 $53,360 

       Land Available for Sale.  At December 31, 2004, non-core assets, totaled $3,528,000.  The Company expects to continue its efforts to 
liquidate its remaining non-core assets. 

Note Receivable from Moore Building Associates LP. In accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 46R, “Consolidation of Variable 
Interest Entities” (“FIN 46R”), Parkway began consolidating Moore Building Associates LP (“MBALP”) effective January 1, 2004. 
Accordingly, the note receivable from MBALP reported in the financial statements at December 31, 2003 in the amount of $5,926,000 has 
been eliminated in consolidation at December 31, 2004. 

Rents Receivable and Other Assets.  Rents receivable and other assets increased $7,376,000 for the year ending December 31, 2004. 
The increase is primarily attributable to the increase in unamortized lease costs due to the purchase of office properties in 2004 and an 
increase in escrow bank account balances.  The increase in unamortized lease costs represents the portion of office property purchase prices 
allocated to lease costs.  In 2004, the total purchase price allocated to lease costs was $2.8 million.  The increase in escrow bank account 
balances of $3.2 million is primarily attributable to an increase in capital expenditure reserve requirements for mortgages assumed in 
connection with 2004 office property purchases. 

Intangible Assets, Net.  During 2004, intangible assets net of related amortization increased $30,302,000 and was primarily attributable 
to the allocation of the purchase price of 2004 office property purchases to above market in-place leases and the value of in-place leases.  In 
2004, the total purchase price allocated to above market in-place lease and the value of in-place leases was $2,416,000 and $33,130,000, 
respectively.  Additionally, in connection with the Rubicon Joint Venture, intangible assets disposed totaled $2,926,000.  Parkway accounts 
for its acquisitions of real estate in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141, “Business Combinations” 
(“SFAS141”), which requires the fair value of the real estate acquired to be allocated to acquired tangible and intangible assets. 

Notes Payable to Banks. Notes payable to banks decreased $5,457,000 or 5% for the year ending December 31, 2004.  At December 
31, 2004, notes payable to banks totaled $104,618,000 and resulted primarily from advances under bank lines of credit to purchase additional 
properties and to make improvements to office properties. 

Mortgage Notes Payable Without Recourse.  Mortgage notes payable without recourse increased $106,785,000 or 43.2% during the 
year ending December 31, 2004, as a result of the following (in thousands): 

Increase 
(Decrease) 

Assumption of first mortgage on office property purchases $  88,677  
Placement of mortgage debt 28,950  
Impact of consolidation of MBALP 13,822  
Scheduled principal payments (13,087)
Principal paid on early extinguishment of debt (11,334)
Market value adjustment on reverse swap interest rate contract (243)

$106,785  

$53,360
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       “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation – Financial Condition – Purchases and 
Improvements” includes a description of mortgages assumed in connection with 2004 office property purchases. 

       On May 26, 2004 the Company closed with a lender two non-recourse first mortgages totaling $28,950,000, which were secured by two 
properties. The mortgages are interest only in years one and two, have a fixed interest rate of 4.39% with a 7-year term and a 25-year 
amortization. Proceeds from the mortgage were used to reduce amounts outstanding under the Company’s lines of credit. 

       The Company expects to continue seeking fixed-rate, non-recourse mortgage financing with maturities from five to ten years typically 
amortizing over 25 to 30 years on select office building investments as additional capital is needed.  The Company targets a debt to total 
market capitalization rate at a percentage in the mid-40's.  This rate may vary at times pending acquisitions, sales and/or equity offerings.  In 
addition, volatility in the price of the Company’s common stock may affect the debt to total market capitalization ratio.  However, over time 
the Company plans to maintain a percentage in the mid-40's. In addition to this debt ratio, the Company monitors interest and fixed charge 
coverage ratios.  The interest coverage ratio is computed by comparing the cash interest accrued to earnings before interest, taxes, 
depreciation and amortization ("EBITDA").    The fixed charge coverage ratio is computed by comparing the cash interest accrued, principal 
payments made on mortgage loans and preferred dividends paid to EBITDA. 

The computation of the interest and fixed charge coverage ratios and the reconciliation of net income to EBITDA are as follows for the 
year ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 (in thousands): 

Year Ended 
December 31 

2004  2003 
Net income $  29,515  $  43,181  
Adjustments to net income: 
        Interest expense 24,309  18,860  
        Amortization of financing costs 997  858  
        Prepayment expenses - early extinguishment of debt 511  -  
        Depreciation and amortization 36,843  28,030  
        Amortization of deferred compensation 783  694  
        Gain on sale of joint venture interests and real estate (4,309)  (10,661) 
        Tax expenses (49)  5 
        EBITDA adjustments - unconsolidated joint ventures 5,929  5,455  
        EBITDA adjustments – minority interest in real estate partnerships (1,772)  - 

EBITDA (1) $  92,757  $  86,422  

Interest coverage ratio: 
EBITDA $  92,757  $  86,422  

Interest expense: 
        Interest expense $  24,309  $  18,860  
        Capitalized interest 15  -  
        Interest expense - unconsolidated joint ventures 2,927  2,796  
        Interest expense – minority interest in real estate partnerships (1,093)  - 
Total interest expense $26,158  $  21,656  

Interest coverage ratio 3.55  3.99  

Fixed charge coverage ratio: 
EBITDA $  92,757  $  86,422  

Fixed charges: 
        Interest expense $  26,158  $  21,656  
        Preferred dividends 9,986  11,443  
        Preferred distributions - unconsolidated joint ventures 507  499  
        Principal payments (excluding early extinguishment of debt) 13,087  11,005  
        Principal payments - unconsolidated joint ventures 633  573  
        Principal payments – Monitory interests in real estate partnerships (399)  - 
Total fixed charges $  49,972  $  45,176  

Fixed charge coverage ratio 1.86  1.91  

       (1)  EBITDA, a non-GAAP financial measure, means operating income before mortgage and other interest expense, income taxes, 
depreciation and amortization.  We believe that EBITDA is useful to investors and Parkway's management as an indication of the Company's 
ability to service debt and pay cash distributions.  EBITDA, as calculated by us, is not comparable to EBITDA reported by other REITs that do 
not define EBITDA exactly as we do.  EBITDA does not represent cash generated from operating activities in accordance with generally 
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accepted accounting principles, and should not be considered an alternative to operating income or net income as an indicator of performance 
or as an alternative to cash flows from operating activities as an indicator of liquidity. 

Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities.  During 2004, accounts payable and other liabilities increased $5,446,000.  The increase is 
primarily attributable to the allocation of office property purchase prices to below market in-place leases in accordance with SFAS 141 which 
totaled $3,739,000 at December 31, 2004. 

Subsidiary Redeemable Preferred Membership Interests.  In connection with the Capital City Plaza purchase, the limited liability 
company that owns the building issued $15.5 million in preferred membership interests to the seller.  The preferred membership interests pay 
the seller a 7% coupon rate and were issued to accommodate their tax planning needs.  The seller has the right to redeem $5.5 million of the 
membership interests within six months of closing and $10 million of the membership interests within nine months of closing.  Parkway has the 
right to retire the preferred interest 40 months after closing.  During the third quarter in 2004, the seller redeemed $4,750,000 of the 
preferred membership interests. 

Stockholders’ Equity.  Stockholders' equity increased $7,668,000 or 1.9% during the year ended December 31, 2004 as a result of the 
following (in thousands): 

Increase 
(Decrease) 

Net income $  29,515
Change in market value of interest rate swap (226) 
Comprehensive income 29,289

Common stock dividends declared (29,951) 
Preferred stock dividends declared (4,800) 
Convertible preferred stock dividends declared (5,186) 
Exercise of stock options 5,964  
Shares issued - stock offerings (5) 
Shares issued – Directors’ fees 138  
Restricted shares and deferred incentive share units issued 271  
Unearned compensation (271) 
Amortization of unearned compensation 783  
Shares contributed to deferred compensation plan (79) 
Shares issued through DRIP plan 11,515  

$    7,668

During 2004, 1,139,358 shares of 8.34% Series B Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock were converted into 1,139,358 shares of 
common stock.  As of December 31, 2004, there were 803,499 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock outstanding. 

       Through the Company’s Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan (“DRIP Plan”), 296,173 common shares were sold during 2004. 
Net proceeds received on the issuance of shares were $11,515,000, which equates to an average net price per share of $38.88 at a discount of 
2.3%.  The proceeds were used to reduce amounts outstanding under the Company’s short-term lines of credit. 

Results of Operations 

Comments are for the year ended December 31, 2004 compared to the year ended December 31, 2003. 

       Net income available for common stockholders for the year ended December 31, 2004 was $19,529,000 ($1.73 per basic common share) 
as compared to $29,119,000 ($2.85 per basic common share) for the year ended December 31, 2003.  Net income for the year ending
December 31, 2004 included gains on a note receivable and the sale of a joint venture interest of $4,309,000.  Net income for the year 
ending December 31, 2003 included gains from the sale of two joint venture interests, an office property and land in the amount of 
$10,661,000. 
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Operating Properties. The primary reason for the change in the Company’s net income from office and parking properties for 2004 as 
compared to 2003 is the net effect of the operations of the following properties purchased, properties sold and joint venture interests sold (in 
thousands): 

Properties Purchased: 

Office Properties Purchase Date Square Feet 
Citrus Center 02/11/03  258 
Peachtree Dunwoody Pavilion 08/28/03  366 
Wells Fargo Building 09/12/03  135 
Carmel Crossing 11/24/03  324 
Maitland 200 01/29/04  203 
Capital City Plaza 04/02/04  407 
Squaw Peak Corporate Center 08/24/04  287 

Property Sold: 

Office Property Date Sold Square Feet
BB&T Financial Center 08/01/03  240 

Joint Venture Interests Sold: 

Office Property/Interest Sold Date Sold Square Feet 
Viad Corporate Center/70% 03/06/03  481 
UBS Building & River Oaks Place/80% 05/28/03  170 
Falls Pointe, Lakewood & Carmel Crossing/80% 12/14/04  550 

       Operations of office and parking properties are summarized below (in thousands): 

Year Ended 
December 31 

2004 2003 
Income $160,506  $142,196  
Operating expense (73,487) (63,362) 

87,019  78,834  
Interest expense (21,580) (16,319) 
Depreciation and amortization (36,843) (28,030) 
Income from office and parking properties $  28,596  $  34,485  

Management Company Income. The increase in management company income of $1,696,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004 
compared to 2003 is primarily due to the acquisition fee of approximately $2 million earned on the Rubicon Joint Venture transaction on 
December 14, 2004.  Under Parkway's three-year strategic plan, VALUE2, Parkway will continue to pursue joint venture opportunities with best 
partners while maintaining the management and leasing of the properties on a day-to-day basis. 

Interest on Note Receivable from Moore Building Associates LP and Incentive Management Fee Income from Moore Building 
Associates LP.  In accordance with FIN 46R, Parkway began consolidating MBALP effective January 1, 2004.  Due to the consolidation, the 
intercompany revenue and expense from MBALP was eliminated from the financial statements.  Therefore, interest income and incentive 
management fee income from MBALP for the year ending December 31, 2004 has been eliminated in consolidation. 

Interest Expense. The $5,261,000 increase in interest expense on office properties in 2004 compared to 2003 is due to the net effect 
of the early extinguishment of three mortgages in 2004 and two mortgages in 2003, new loans placed or assumed in 2004 and 2003, the 
issuance of the subsidiary redeemable preferred membership interests in connection with the Capital City Plaza purchase in 2004 and the 
impact of consolidating MBALP.  The average interest rate on mortgage notes payable as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 was 6.0% and 
6.9%, respectively. 

       The $838,000 increase in interest expense on bank notes for the year ending December 31, 2004 compared to the year ending December 
31, 2003 is primarily due to the increase in the average balance of bank borrowings from $96 million in 2003 to $140 million in 2004.  The 
increase in bank borrowings is primarily attributable to reinvesting proceeds from the 2003 joint ventures previously used to reduce amounts 
outstanding under the Company’s lines of credit.  

Comments are for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared to the year ended December 31, 2002. 

       Net income available for common stockholders for the year ended December 31, 2003 was $29,119,000 ($2.85 per basic common share) 
as compared to $17,458,000 ($1.87 per basic common share) for the year ended December 31, 2002.  Net income for the year ending

Property Sold: 
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December 31, 2003 included a gain from the sale of two joint venture interests, an office property and land in the amount of $10,661,000.  
Net income for the year ending December 31, 2002 included a net loss of $1,298,000, which was attributable to the sale of a joint venture 
interest, an office property, an impairment loss on an office property and an impairment loss on land. 

Operating Properties.  The primary reason for the change in the Company’s net income from office and parking properties for 2003 as 
compared to 2002 is the net effect of the operations of the following properties purchased, properties sold and joint venture interests sold (in 
thousands): 

Properties Purchased: 

Office Properties Purchase Date Square Feet 
The Park on Camelback 05/22/02  103 
Viad Corporate Center 05/31/02  481 
5300 Memorial 06/05/02  154 
Town & Country Central One 06/05/02  148 
1717 St. James Place 06/05/02  110 
Citrus Center 02/11/03  258 
Peachtree Dunwoody Pavilion 08/28/03  366 
Wells Fargo Building 09/12/03  135 
Carmel Crossing 11/24/03  324 

Properties Sold: 

Office Property Date Sold Square Feet
Corporate Square West 05/31/02  96 
BB&T Financial Center 08/01/03  240 

Joint Venture Interests Sold: 

Office Property/Interest Sold Date Sold Square Feet 
233 North Michigan/70% 05/30/02  1,070 
Viad Corporate Center/70% 03/06/03  481 
UBS Building & River 
     Oaks Place/80% 05/28/03  170 

       Operations of office and parking properties are summarized below (in thousands): 

Year Ended 
December 31 

2003 2002 
Income $142,196  $152,442  
Operating expense (63,362) (65,942) 

78,834  86,500  
Interest expense (16,319) (19,839) 
Depreciation and amortization (28,030) (27,412) 
Income from office and parking properties $  34,485  $  39,249  

Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Joint Ventures and Management Company Income.  Equity in earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures 
increased $1,388,000 for the year ending December 31, 2003 compared to the year ending December 31, 2002.  This increase is attributable to the 
formation of the Viad Joint Venture and the Jackson Joint Venture in 2003 and the 233 North Michigan Avenue joint venture in 2002.  Under the terms 
of the joint venture agreements, Parkway continues to provide management and leasing services for the buildings on a day-to-day basis.  The increase in 
management company income of $939,000 for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared to 2002 is primarily due to the fees earned from 
providing management and leasing services to the joint ventures.  Under Parkway's three-year strategic plan, VALUE2, Parkway will continue to pursue 
joint venture opportunities with best partners while maintaining the management and leasing of the properties on a day-to-day basis. 

Interest Expense.  The $3,520,000 decrease in interest expense on office properties in 2003 compared to 2002 is primarily due to the 
net effect of the early extinguishment of two mortgages in 2003 and three mortgages in 2002, the transfer of a mortgage note payable to the 
233 North Michigan Avenue joint venture in 2002 and new loans placed or assumed in 2003 and 2002.  The average interest rate on mortgage 
notes payable as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 was 6.9% and 7.4%, respectively. 

The $3,248,000 decrease in interest expense on bank notes for the year ending December 31, 2003 compared to the year ending 
December 31, 2002 is primarily due to the decrease in the weighted average interest rate on bank lines of credit from 4.7% during 2002 to 
2.8% during 2003.  Additionally, the average balance of bank borrowings decreased from $127 million in 2002 to $96 million in 2003.  The 
decrease in bank borrowings is primarily attributable to proceeds from the 2003 joint ventures used to reduce amounts outstanding under the 
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Company’s lines of credit.  We anticipate that the outstanding balance under the Company’s lines of credit will increase as the funds from the 
joint ventures are invested in new operating properties.  

General and Administrative Expense.  General and administrative expense decreased $828,000 for the year ending December 31, 2003 
compared to the same period in 2002.  The net decrease is primarily due to the decrease in amortization of unearned compensation expense 
pertaining to the Company’s restricted stock shares.  Due to Parkway’s achievement of the 55 iinn 5500 PPllaann in 2002, the restricted shares granted 
were fully amortized in 2002.  In 2003, the stockholders approved the issuance of 142,000 shares of restricted stock to certain officers of the 
Company in connection with the VALUE2 plan. The restricted shares issued in 2003 are valued at $5,092,000, and the vesting period for the 
stock is 7 years or 36 months if the goals of the VALUE2 plan are achieved. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

       Statement of Cash Flows.  Cash and cash equivalents were $1,077,000 and $468,000 at December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003, 
respectively. Cash flows provided by operating activities for the year ending December 31, 2004 were $58,569,000 compared to 
$51,170,000 for the same period of 2003.  The change in cash flows from operating activities is primarily attributable to the timing of receipt 
of revenues and payment of expenses and the increase in number of properties owned. 

       Cash used in investing activities was $30,370,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004 compared to cash used by investing activities of 
$28,417,000 for the same period of 2003.  The decrease in cash provided by investing activities of $1,953,000 is primarily due to increased 
office property improvements and parking development costs in 2004. 

Cash used in financing activities was $28,353,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004 compared to cash used in financing activities of 
$23,879,000 for the same period of 2003.  The decrease in cash provided by financing activities of $4,474,000 is primarily due to the 
decrease in net proceeds from stock offerings.  

       Liquidity. The Company plans to continue pursuing the acquisition of additional investments that meet the Company's investment criteria
in accordance with the strategies outlined under "Business" and intends to use bank lines of credit, proceeds from the sale of non-core assets 
and office properties, proceeds from the sale of portions of owned assets through joint ventures, possible sales of securities and cash balances 
to fund those acquisitions.  At December 31, 2004, the Company had $104,618,000 outstanding under three unsecured bank lines of credit. 

The Company's cash flows are exposed to interest rate changes primarily as a result of its lines of credit used to maintain liquidity and fund 
capital expenditures and expansion of the Company’s real estate investment portfolio and operations.  The Company’s interest rate risk 
management objective is to limit the impact of interest rate changes on earnings and cash flows and to lower its overall borrowing costs.  To 
achieve its objectives, the Company borrows at fixed rates, but also utilizes a three-year unsecured revolving credit facility and two one-year 
unsecured lines of credit. 

On February 6, 2004, Parkway entered into a Credit Agreement with a consortium of 11 banks with Wachovia Capital Markets, LLC as Sole 
Lead Arranger and Sole Book Runner, Wachovia Bank, National Association as Administrative Agent, PNC Bank, National Association as 
Syndication Agent, and other banks as participants.  The Credit Agreement provides for a three-year $170 million unsecured revolving credit 
facility (the “$170 million line”).  The $170 million line replaces the previous $135 million unsecured revolving credit facility and the $20 
million term loan with JP Morgan Chase Bank.  The increased size of the line of credit allows greater financial flexibility and capacity while 
accommodating the Company’s growth.  Additionally, previous covenants such as market concentration of assets were removed while per 
building occupancy limits were replaced with asset pool occupancy requirements.  The changes result in greater strategic flexibility in terms of 
where the Company invests and mutes the impact of customer move-outs, particularly within smaller buildings.  The interest rate on the $170 
million line is equal to the 30-day LIBOR rate plus 100 to 150 basis points, depending upon overall Company leverage (with the current rate 
set at 132.5 basis points).  The interest rate on the $170 million line was 3% at December 31, 2004. The $170 million line matures February 6, 
2007 and contains a one-year extension option available at maturity.  The line is expected to fund acquisitions of additional investments.  The 
Company paid a facility fee of $170,000 (10 basis points) and origination fees of $556,000 (32.71 basis points) upon closing of the loan 
agreement and pays an annual administration fee of $35,000. The Company also pays fees on the unused portion of the line based upon 
overall Company leverage, with the current rate set at 12.5 basis points. 

        On February 4, 2005, Parkway amended and renewed the one-year $15 million unsecured line of credit with PNC Bank (the “$15 million 
line”).  This line of credit matures February 2, 2006, is unsecured and is expected to fund the daily cash requirements of the Company’s 
treasury management system.  The interest rate on the $15 million line is equal to the 30-day LIBOR rate plus 100 to 150 basis points, 
depending upon overall Company leverage (with the current rate set at 132.5 basis points).  The interest rate on the $15 million line was 3.6% 
at December 31, 2004.  The Company paid a facility fee of $15,000 (10 basis points) upon closing of the loan agreement.  Under the $15 
million line, the Company does not pay annual administration fees or fees on the unused portion of the line. 

On December 7, 2004, the Company closed a $9 million unsecured line of credit with Trustmark National Bank (the “$9 million line”). 
The interest rate on the $9 million line is equal to the 30-day LIBOR rate plus 132.5 basis points and was 3.7% at December 31, 2004.  This 
line of credit matures December 7, 2005 and the proceeds are being used to fund the construction of the City Centre Garage currently under 
development.   
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       The Company's interest rate hedge contracts as of December 31, 2004 are summarized as follows (in thousands): 

Type of Notional Maturity Fixed Fair 
Hedge Amount Date Reference Rate Rate Market Value 
Swap $20,000 12/31/05 1-Month LIBOR 3.183% $  (33) 
Swap $40,000 06/30/06 1-Month LIBOR 3.530% (193) 

$(226) 

To protect against the potential for rapidly rising interest rates, the Company entered into two interest rate swap agreements in May 2004. 
The first interest rate swap agreement is for a $40 million notional amount and fixed the 30-day LIBOR interest rate at 3.53% for the period 
January 1, 2005 through June 30, 2006. The second interest rate swap agreement is for a $20 million notional amount and fixed the 30-day 
LIBOR interest rate at 3.18% for the period January 1, 2005 through December 31, 2005. The Company designated the swaps as hedges of the 
variable interest rates on the Company’s borrowings under the $170 million line.  Accordingly, changes in the fair value of the swap are 
recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income until the hedged item is recognized in earnings. 

At December 31, 2004, the Company had $353,975,000 of non-recourse fixed rate mortgage notes payable with an average interest rate 
of 6% secured by office properties and $104,618,000 drawn under bank lines of credit.  Parkway's pro rata share of unconsolidated joint 
venture debt was $52,469,000 with an average interest rate of 7% at December 31, 2004.  Based on the Company’s total market 
capitalization of approximately $1.2 billion at December 31, 2004 (using the December 31, 2004 closing price of $50.75 per common share), 
the Company’s debt represented approximately 41.4% of its total market capitalization.  The Company targets a debt to total market 
capitalization rate at a percentage in the mid-40's.  This rate may vary at times pending acquisitions, sales and/or equity offerings.  In addition, 
volatility in the price of the Company’s common stock may affect the debt to total market capitalization ratio.  However, over time the 
Company plans to maintain a percentage in the mid-40's.  In addition to this debt ratio, the Company also monitors interest and fixed charge 
coverage ratios.  The interest coverage ratio is computed by comparing the cash interest accrued to earnings before interest, taxes, 
depreciation and amortization.  This ratio for the year ending December 31, 2004 and 2003 was 3.55 and 3.99 times, respectively.  The fixed 
charge coverage ratio is computed by comparing the cash interest accrued, principal payments made on mortgage loans and preferred 
dividends paid to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization.  This ratio for the year ending December 31, 2004 and 2003 
was 1.86 and 1.91 times, respectively. Interest and fixed charge coverage ratios were lower in 2004 compared to 2003 primarily due to lower 
revenues as a result of lower occupancy. 

       The table below presents the principal payments due and weighted average interest rates for the fixed rate debt. 

Average Fixed Rate Debt 
Interest Rate (In thousands) 

2005 5.98% $  14,609 
2006 5.95% 16,272 
2007 5.92% 35,107 
2008 6.13% 98,475 
2009 6.28% 30,517 
Thereafter 7.42% 158,995 
Total  $353,975 

Fair value at 12/31/04  $366,252 

       The Company presently has plans to make additional capital improvements at its office properties in 2005 of approximately $30 million. 
These expenses include tenant improvements, capitalized acquisition costs and capitalized building improvements.  Approximately $6 million 
of these improvements relate to upgrades on properties acquired in recent years that were anticipated at the time of purchase.  All such 
improvements are expected to be financed by cash flow from the properties and advances on the bank lines of credit. 

       The Company anticipates that its current cash balance, operating cash flows, proceeds from the sale of office properties, proceeds from 
the sale of portions of owned assets through joint ventures, possible sales of securities and borrowings (including borrowings under the working 
capital line of credit) will be adequate to pay the Company's (i) operating and administrative expenses, (ii) debt service obligations, (iii) 
distributions to shareholders, (iv) capital improvements, and (v) normal repair and maintenance expenses at its properties both in the short and 
long term. 

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 

At December 31, 2004, Parkway had the following off-balance sheet arrangements:  (1) a non-controlling 30% interest in Parkway 233 
North Michigan, LLC, a real estate joint venture; (2) a non-controlling 30% interest in Phoenix OfficeInvest, LLC, a real estate joint venture; 
(3) a non-controlling 20% interest in Parkway Joint Venture, LLC, a real estate joint venture; (4) a non-controlling 50% interest in 
Wink/Parkway Partnership, a real estate joint venture; and (5) a non-controlling 20% interest in RubiconPark I, LLC, a real estate joint venture. 

The above real estate joint ventures own and operate office properties in Chicago, Illinois; Phoenix, Arizona; Jackson, Mississippi; New 
Orleans, Louisiana; Atlanta, Georgia; and Charlotte, North Carolina, respectively.  Parkway manages all ventures on a day-to-day basis with the 
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exception of the Wink/Parkway Partnership.  The Company accounts for its interest in these joint ventures using the equity method of 
accounting.   

       The following information summarizes the financial position at December 31, 2004 for the investments in which we held an interest at 
December 31, 2004 (in thousands): 

Mortgage Parkway’s 
Summary of Financial Position Total Assets Debt (1) Total Equity Investment 

Parkway 233 North Michigan, LLC $182,380 $100,133 $71,450 $14,539 
Phoenix OfficeInvest, LLC 62,425 42,500 17,346 4,388 
Parkway Joint Venture, LLC 17,184 11,269 5,383 19 
Wink/Parkway Partnership 1,413 450 960 480 
RubiconPark I, LLC 76,011 52,000 23,716 5,868 

$339,413 $206,352 $118,855 $25,294 

(1)  The mortgage debt, all of which is non-recourse, is collateralized by the individual real estate property or properties within each 
venture, the net book value of which totaled $314 million at December 31, 2004.  Parkway’s proportionate share of the non-recourse mortgage 
debt totaled $52.5 million at December 31, 2004. 

       The following information summarizes the results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2004 for investments which impacted our 
2004 results of operations (in thousands): 

 Total Net Parkway’s Share 
Summary of Operations Revenue Income of Net Income 

Parkway 233 North Michigan, LLC $33,586 $2,663 $   799 
Phoenix OfficeInvest, LLC 11,474 2,390 717 
Parkway Joint Venture, LLC 2,827 499 100 
Wink/Parkway Partnership 305 143 72 
RubiconPark I, LLC 418 7 9 

$48,610 $5,702 $1,697 

Contractual Obligations 

       We have contractual obligations including mortgage notes payable and lease obligations.  The table below presents total payments due 
under specified contractual obligations by year through maturity as of December 31, 2004 (in thousands): 

Payments Due By Period 
Contractual Obligations Total 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Thereafter 
Long-Term Debt (Mortgage Notes Payable  
       Without Recourse) $445,544 $36,700 $37,686 $54,964 $115,379 $41,479 $159,336 
Capital Lease Obligations - - - - - - -
Operating Leases 1,763 925 529 222 87 - - 
Purchase Obligations 12,040 11,394 580 36 14 2 14 
Subsidiary Redeemable Preferred 
       Membership Interests 10,741 10,741 - - - - - 
Other Long-Term Liabilities - - - - - - -
Total $470,088 $59,760 $38,795 $55,222 $115,480 $41,481 $159,350 

       The amounts presented above for mortgage notes payable without recourse include principal and interest payments. The amounts 
presented for purchase obligations represent the remaining tenant improvement and building improvement allowance obligation for leases in 
place as of December 31, 2004 plus commitments for the City Centre parking garage development. 

In connection with the Capital City Plaza purchase, the limited liability company that owns the building issued $15.5 million in preferred 
membership interests to the seller.  The preferred membership interests pay the seller a 7% coupon rate and were issued to accommodate 
their tax planning needs.  The seller has the right to redeem $5.5 million of the membership interests within six months of closing and 
$10 million of the membership interests within nine months of closing.  Parkway has the right to retire the preferred interest 40 months after 
closing.  During the third quarter in 2004, the seller redeemed $4,750,000 of the preferred membership interests. 

Parkway has a less than .1% ownership interest in MBALP and acts as the managing general partner.  MBALP is primarily funded with 
financing from a third party lender, which is secured by a first lien on the rental property of the partnership.  The creditors of MBALP do not
have recourse to Parkway.  In acting as the general partner, Parkway is committed to providing additional funding to partnership deficits up to an 
aggregate amount of $1 million.  To date Parkway has not been required to provide any additional funding to MBALP.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates 

General.  Parkway’s investments are generally made in office properties.  Therefore, the Company is generally subject to risks incidental to 
the ownership of real estate.  Some of these risks include changes in supply or demand for office properties or tenants for such properties in an 
area in which we have buildings; changes in real estate tax rates; and changes in federal income tax, real estate and zoning laws.  The 
Company’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations is based upon its Consolidated Financial Statements.  The 
Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Parkway Properties, Inc. and its majority owned subsidiaries. Parkway 
also consolidates subsidiaries where the entity is a variable interest entity and Parkway is the primary beneficiary, as defined in FASB 
Interpretation 46R “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” (“FIN 46R”).  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the 
reporting period.  Actual results could differ from our estimates. 

       The accounting policies and estimates used in the preparation of our Consolidated Financial Statements are more fully described in the 
notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements.  However, certain of the Company’s significant accounting policies are considered critical 
accounting policies due to the increased level of assumptions used or estimates made in determining their impact on our Consolidated 
Financial Statements. 

       Parkway considers critical accounting policies and estimates to be those used in the determination of the reported amounts and disclosure 
related to the following: 

       (1)  Impairment or disposal of long-lived assets; 
       (2)  Depreciable lives applied to real estate and improvements to real estate; 
       (3)  Initial recognition, measurement and allocation of the cost of real estate acquired; and 
       (4)  Allowance for doubtful accounts 

Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.  Changes in the supply or demand of tenants for our properties could impact our ability to 
fill available space.  Should a significant amount of available space exist for an extended period, our investment in a particular office building 
may be impaired.  We evaluate our real estate assets upon the occurrence of significant adverse changes to assess whether any impairment 
indicators are present that affect the recovery of the carrying amount.  

Real estate assets are classified as held for sale or held and used in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) 
No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”.  In accordance with SFAS No. 144, the Company records assets 
held for sale at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell.  With respect to assets classified as held and used, we periodically 
review these assets to determine whether our carrying amount will be recovered.  A long-lived asset is considered impaired if its carrying value 
exceeds the estimated fair value.  Fair value is based on the estimated and realizable contract sales price (if available) for the asset less 
estimated costs to sell.  If a sales price is not available, the estimated undiscounted cash flows of the asset for the remaining useful life are 
used to determine if the carrying value is recoverable.  The cash flow estimates are based on assumptions about employing the asset for its 
remaining useful life.  Factors considered in projecting future cash flows include but are not limited to:  Existing leases, future leasing and 
terminations, market rental rates, capital improvements, tenant improvements, leasing commissions, inflation and other known variables.  
Upon impairment, the Company would recognize an impairment loss to reduce the carrying value of the long-lived asset to our estimate of its 
fair value.  The estimate of fair value and cash flows to be generated from properties requires us to make assumptions.  If one or more 
assumptions prove incorrect or if the assumptions change, the recognition of an impairment loss on one or more properties may be necessary in 
the future, which would result in a decrease in net income. 

No impairment losses were recognized for the year ending December 31, 2004 or 2003. 

Depreciable Lives Applied to Real Estate and Improvements to Real Estate.  Depreciation of buildings and parking garages is 
computed using the straight-line method over an estimated useful life of 40 years.  Depreciation of building improvements is computed using 
the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the improvement.  If our estimate of useful lives proves to be incorrect, the 
depreciation expense recognized would also be incorrect.  Therefore, a change in the estimated useful lives assigned to buildings and 
improvements would result in either an increase or decrease in depreciation expense, which would result in an increase or decrease in earnings. 

Initial Recognition, Measurement and Allocation of the Cost of Real Estate Acquired.  Parkway accounts for its acquisitions of real 
estate in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141, “Business Combinations,” which requires the fair value of the 
real estate acquired to be allocated to the acquired tangible assets, consisting of land, building, garage, building improvements and tenant 
improvements, and identified intangible assets and liabilities, consisting of the value of above and below market leases, customer relationships, 
lease costs and the value of  in-place leases. 

Parkway allocates the purchase price to the fair value of the tangible assets of an acquired property by valuing the property as if it were 
vacant.  The as-if-vacant value is allocated to tangible assets based on the relative fair value of those assets.  Value is allocated to tenant 
improvements based on the estimated costs of similar customers with similar terms.  The difference between the purchase price and the as-if-
vacant value represents the fair value of the intangible assets or the intangible gap.  The intangible gap is then allocated among the identifiable 
intangible assets. 
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The Company determines the fair value of the tangible and intangible components using a variety of methods and assumptions all of which 
result in an approximation of fair value. Differing assumptions and methods could result in different estimates of fair value and thus, a different 
purchase price allocation and corresponding increase or decrease in depreciation and amortization expense. 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts.  Accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for amounts that may become uncollectible in the 
future.  Our receivable balance is comprised primarily of rents and operating expense recoveries due from customers.  Change in the supply of 
or demand for office properties could impact our customers’ ability to honor their lease obligations, which could in turn affect our recorded 
revenues and estimates of the collectibility of our receivables.  Revenue from real estate rentals is recognized and accrued as earned on a pro 
rata basis over the term of the lease.  We regularly evaluate the adequacy of our allowance for doubtful accounts considering such factors as 
credit quality of our customers, delinquency of payment, historical trends and current economic conditions.  We provide an allowance for 
doubtful accounts for customer balances that are over 90 days past due and for specific customer receivables for which collection is 
considered doubtful.  Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions, which could result in an 
increase or decrease in bad debt expense. 

Funds From Operations 

       Management believes that funds from operations (“FFO”) is an appropriate measure of performance for equity REITs and computes this 
measure in accordance with the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts' ("NAREIT") definition of FFO.  FFO as reported by 
Parkway may not be comparable to FFO reported by other REITs that do not define the term in accordance with the current NAREIT 
definition.  We believe FFO is helpful to investors as a supplemental measure that enhances the comparability of our operations by adjusting 
net income for items not reflective of our principal and recurring operations.  This measure, along with cash flows from operating, financing and 
investing activities, provides investors with an indication of our ability to incur and service debt, to make capital expenditures and to fund other 
cash needs.  In addition, FFO has widespread acceptance and use within the REIT and analyst communities.  Funds from operations is defined 
by NAREIT as net income (computed in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles "GAAP"), excluding gains or losses from 
sales of property and extraordinary items under GAAP, plus depreciation and amortization, and after adjustments for unconsolidated 
partnerships and joint ventures.  Adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures will be calculated to reflect funds from 
operations on the same basis.  We believe that in order to facilitate a clear understanding of our operating results, FFO should be examined in 
conjunction with the net income as presented in our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.  
Funds from operations do not represent cash generated from operating activities in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States and is not an indication of cash available to fund cash needs.  Funds from operations should not be considered an 
alternative to net income as an indicator of the Company's operating performance or as an alternative to cash flow as a measure of liquidity. 

       The following table presents a reconciliation of the Company's net income to FFO for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 (in 
thousands, except per share data): 

Total Dollar Amount Diluted Per Share 
Year Ended Year Ended 

December 31 December 31 
2004 2003 2004 2003 

Net income $29,515  $43,181  $2.57  $4.13  
Adjustments to derive funds from operations: 
     Depreciation and amortization 36,843  28,030  2.78  2.23  
     Minority interest depreciation and amortization (654) - (.05) - 
     Adjustments for unconsolidated joint ventures 2,345  2,030  .18  .16  
     Preferred dividends (4,800) (5,352) (.42) (.51) 
     Convertible preferred dividends (5,186) (6,091) (.45) (.58) 
     Original issue costs-redemption of preferred stock -  (2,619) -  (.25) 
     Gain on real estate and joint venture interests (3,535) (10,299) (.27) (.82) 
     Amortization of deferred gains and other 2  (23) -  -  
     Diluted share adjustment for convertible preferred stock -  - .17  .02  
Funds from operations applicable to common shareholders $54,530  $48,857  $4.51  $4.38  

Inflation 

       In the last five years, inflation has not had a significant impact on the Company because of the relatively low inflation rate in the Company's 
geographic areas of operation.  Most of the leases require the tenants to pay their pro rata share of operating expenses, including common area 
maintenance, real estate taxes and insurance, thereby reducing the Company's exposure to increases in operating expenses resulting from 
inflation. In addition, the Company's leases typically have three to seven year terms, which may enable the Company to replace existing leases 
with new leases at market base rent, which may be higher or lower than the existing lease rate. 
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Forward-Looking Statements 

       In addition to historical information, certain sections of this Form 10-K may contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of 
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, such as those that are not in the present or 
past tense, that discuss the Company's beliefs, expectations or intentions or those pertaining to the Company's capital resources, profitability 
and portfolio performance and estimates of market rental rates.  Forward-looking statements involve numerous risks and uncertainties.  The 
following factors, among others discussed herein and in the Company's filings under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, could cause actual 
results and future events to differ materially from those set forth or contemplated in the forward-looking statements:  defaults or non-renewal 
of leases, increased interest rates and operating costs, failure to obtain necessary outside financing, difficulties in identifying properties to 
acquire and in effecting acquisitions, failure to qualify as a real estate investment trust under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, 
environmental uncertainties, risks related to natural disasters, financial market fluctuations, changes in real estate and zoning laws and increases 
in real property tax rates.  The success of the Company also depends upon the trends of the economy, including interest rates, income tax 
laws, governmental regulation, legislation, population changes and those risk factors discussed elsewhere in this Form 10-K and in the 
Company's filings under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-looking 
statements, which reflect management's analysis only as the date hereof.  The Company assumes no obligation to update forward-looking 
statements. 

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 

       See information appearing under the caption "Liquidity" appearing in "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and 
Results of Operations". 

As of December 31, 2004, total outstanding debt was approximately $458,593,000 of which $104,618,000 or 22.8%, is variable rate 
debt.  If market rates of interest on the variable rate debt fluctuate by 10% (or approximately 31 basis points), the change in interest expense on 
the variable rate debt would increase or decrease future earnings and cash flows by approximately $323,000 annually. 

CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

       The Company’s management, with the participation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated 
the effectiveness of Parkway’s disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2004.  Based on that evaluation, the Company’s Chief 
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that Parkway’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 31, 
2004.  There were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting during the fourth quarter of 2004 that has materially 
affected, or is reasonably likely to affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. 

              The Company’s internal control system was designed to provide reasonable assurance to the company’s management and board of 
directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements. All internal control systems, no matter how well 
designed, have inherent limitations.  Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with 
respect to the financial statement preparation and presentation. 

MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

              The Company’s management, with the participation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, is 
responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting.  The Company’s management has assessed the 
effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004.  In making this assessment, we used the 
criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control – Integrated 
Framework. Based on our assessment we have concluded that, as of December 31, 2004, the company’s internal control over financial 
reporting is effective based on those criteria.  Our independent registered public accounting firm, Ernst & Young LLP, have provided an 
attestation report on management’s assessment of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004. 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING 

Shareholders and Board of Directors 
Parkway Properties, Inc. 

       We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial 
Reporting, that Parkway Properties, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 
2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the 
Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria).  Parkway Properties, Inc. and subsidiaries’ management is responsible for maintaining effective 
internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting.  Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over 
financial reporting based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).  Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial 
reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, 
evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such 
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.  We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

       A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles.  A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

       Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.  Also, projections of 
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

       In our opinion, management’s assessment that Parkway Properties, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained effective internal control over financial 
reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the COSO criteria.  Also, in our opinion, Parkway 
Properties, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 
2004, based on the COSO criteria. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the 
consolidated balance sheets of Parkway Properties, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated 
statements of income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004 of Parkway 
Properties, Inc. and subsidiaries and our report dated February 28, 2005 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon. 

���
New Orleans, Louisiana 
February 28, 2005 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 

Shareholders and Board of Directors  
Parkway Properties, Inc.  

       We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Parkway Properties, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 
2003, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 
December 31, 2004.  These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management.  Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

       We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).  Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An 
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

       In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of 
Parkway Properties, Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for 
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the 
effectiveness of Parkway Properties, Inc. and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria 
established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and 
our report dated February 28, 2005 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon. 

���
New Orleans, Louisiana 
February 28, 2005 
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PARKWAY PROPERTIES, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(In thousands) 

December 31 December 31 
2004 2003 

Assets 
Real estate related investments: 
     Office and parking properties $  959,279  $  844,168  
     Parking development 4,434  -  
     Accumulated depreciation (142,906) (115,473) 

820,807  728,695  
     Land available for sale 3,528  3,528  
     Note receivable from Moore Building Associates LP -  5,926  
     Mortgage loans -  861  
     Investment in unconsolidated joint ventures 25,294  20,026  

849,629  759,036  
Rents receivable and other assets 42,448  35,072  
Intangible assets, net 38,034  7,732  
Cash and cash equivalents 1,077  468  

$  931,188  $  802,308  
Liabilities 
Notes payable to banks $  104,618  $  110,075  
Mortgage notes payable without recourse 353,975  247,190  
Accounts payable and other liabilities 42,468  37,022  
Subsidiary redeemable preferred membership interests 10,741  -  

511,802  394,287  
Minority Interest 
Minority Interest – unit holders 39  41  
Minority Interest – real estate partnerships 3,699  -  

3,738  41  
Stockholders' Equity 
8.34% Series B Cumulative Convertible Preferred stock, $.001 par value, 
     2,142,857 shares authorized, 803,499 and 1,942,857 shares issued and  
     outstanding in 2004 and 2003, respectively 28,122  68,000  
Series C Preferred stock, $.001 par value, 400,000 shares authorized, 
     no shares issued -  -  
8.00% Series D Preferred stock, $.001 par value, 2,400,000 shares authorized,  
     issued and outstanding 57,976  57,976  
Common stock, $.001 par value, 65,057,143 shares authorized, 12,464,817 and 
     10,808,131 shares issued and outstanding in 2004 and 2003, respectively 12  11  
Excess stock, $.001 par value, 30,000,000 shares authorized, no shares issued -  -  
Common stock held in trust, at cost, 130,000 and 128,000 shares in 2004 
     and 2003, respectively  (4,400) (4,321) 
Additional paid-in capital 310,455  252,695  
Unearned compensation (4,122) (4,634) 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (226)  - 
Retained earnings 27,831  38,253  

415,648  407,980  
$  931,188  $  802,308  

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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PARKWAY PROPERTIES, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

(In thousands, except per share data) 

Year Ended December 31 
2004 2003 2002 

Revenues 
Income from office and parking properties $160,506  $142,196  $152,442  
Management company income 3,832  2,136  1,197  
Interest on note receivable from Moore Building Associates LP - 819  895  
Incentive management fee from Moore Building Associates LP - 300  325  
Other income and deferred gains 37  599  401  
Total revenues 164,375  146,050  155,260  

Expenses 
Office and parking properties: 
     Operating expense 73,487  63,362  65,942  
     Interest expense: 
          Contractual 19,788  16,026  18,766  
          Subsidiary redeemable preferred membership interests 725  - -
          Prepayment expenses 511  - 833  
          Amortization of loan costs 556  293  240  
     Depreciation and amortization 36,843  28,030  27,412  
Operating expense for other real estate properties 22  37  34  
Interest expense on bank notes: 
          Contractual 3,796  2,834  6,055  
          Amortization of loan costs 441  565  592  
Management company expenses 358  391  416  
General and administrative 4,464  4,201  5,029  
Total expenses 140,991  115,739  125,319  

Income before equity in earnings, gain (loss), minority interest and  
     discontinued operations 23,384  30,311  29,941  
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures 1,697  2,212  824  
Gain (loss) on note receivable, sale of joint venture interests and real estate 4,309  10,661  (474)
Impairment loss on office property - - (1,594)
Minority interest - unit holders (2) (3) (2) 
Minority interest - real estate partnerships 127  - -

Income from continuing operations 29,515  43,181  28,695  
Discontinued operations: 
     Income from discontinued operations - - 47
     Gain on sale of real estate from discontinued operations - - 770  
Net income 29,515  43,181  29,512  
Change in market value of interest rate swap (226) 170  1,524  
Comprehensive income $  29,289  $  43,351  $  31,036  

Net income available to common stockholders: 
Net income $  29,515  $  43,181  $  29,512  
Original issue costs associated with redemption or preferred stock - (2,619) -
Dividends on preferred stock (4,800) (5,352) (5,797)
Dividends on convertible preferred stock (5,186) (6,091) (6,257)
Net income available to common stockholders $  19,529  $  29,119  $  17,458  

Net income per common share: 
Basic: 
Income before discontinued operations $     1.73  $     2.85  $     1.78  
Discontinued operations - - .09
Net income $     1.73  $     2.85  $     1.87  

Diluted: 
Income before discontinued operations $     1.70  $     2.79  $     1.75  
Discontinued operations - - .09
Net income $     1.70  $     2.79  $     1.84  

Dividends per common share $     2.60  $     2.60  $     2.56  

Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic 11,270  10,224  9,312  

Diluted 11,478  10,453  9,480  

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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PARKWAY PROPERTIES, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

(In thousands) 

Year Ended December 31 
2004 2003 2002 

8.75% Series A Preferred stock, $.001 par value 
     Balance at beginning of year $            -  $  66,250  $  66,250  
          Redemption of preferred stock -  (66,250) -  
     Balance at end of year -  -  66,250  

8.34% Series B Cumulative Convertible Preferred stock, $.001 par value 
     Balance at beginning of year 68,000  75,000  75,000  
          Conversion of preferred stock to common stock (39,878) (7,000) - 
     Balance at end of year 28,122  68,000  75,000  

8.00% Series D Preferred stock, $.001 par value 
     Balance at beginning of year 57,976  -  -  
          Shares issued -  57,976  -  
     Balance at end of year 57,976  57,976  -  

Common stock, $.001 par value 
     Balance at beginning of year 11  9  9  
          Shares issued – stock offering -  1  -  
          Shares issued - other 1  1  -  
     Balance at end of year 12  11  9  

Common stock held in trust 
     Balance at beginning of year (4,321) -  -  
          Shares contributed to deferred compensation plan (79) (4,321) - 
     Balance at end of year (4,400) (4,321) - 

Additional paid-in capital 
     Balance at beginning of year 252,695  199,979  196,032  
          Stock options exercised 5,964  6,079  2,996  
          Shares issued in lieu of Directors' fees 138  76  62  
          Restricted shares issued 70  5,092  -  
          Deferred incentive share units issued 201  236  -  
          Shares issued - employee excellence recognition program -  3  3  
          Shares issued - DRIP Plan 11,515  7,799  1,310  
          Shares issued - stock offerings (5) 24,178  -  
          Conversion of preferred stock to common stock 39,877  7,000  -  
          Original issue costs associated with redemption of preferred stock -  2,619  -  
          Purchase of Company stock -  (366) (424) 
     Balance at end of year 310,455  252,695  199,979  

Unearned compensation 
     Balance at beginning of year (4,634) - (2,190) 
          Restricted shares issued (70) (5,092) - 
          Deferred incentive share units issued (201) (236) - 
          Amortization of unearned compensation 783  694  2,190  
     Balance at end of year (4,122) (4,634) - 

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 
     Balance at beginning of year -  (170) (1,694) 
          Change in market value of interest rate swaps (226) 170  1,524  
     Balance at end of year (226) - (170) 

Retained earnings 
     Balance at beginning of year 38,253  35,753  42,174  
          Net income 29,515  43,181  29,512  
          Original issue costs associated with redemption of preferred stock -  (2,619) -  
          Preferred stock dividends declared (4,800) (5,352) (5,797) 
          Convertible preferred stock dividends declared (5,186) (6,091) (6,257) 
          Common stock dividends declared (29,951) (26,619) (23,879) 
     Balance at end of year 27,831  38,253  35,753  
Total stockholders' equity $415,648  $407,980  $376,821  

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PARKWAY PROPERTIES, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(In thousands) 

Year Ended December 31 
2004 2003 2002 

Operating activities 
     Net income $    29,515  $    43,181  $    29,512  
     Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash 
          provided by operating activities: 
          Depreciation and amortization 36,843  28,030  27,412  
          Depreciation and amortization – discontinued operations -  -  22  
          Amortization of above (below) market leases 139  (29) -  
          Amortization of loan costs 997  858  832  
          Amortization of unearned compensation 783  694  2,190  
          Income (loss) allocated to minority interests (125) 3 2 
          (Gain) loss on note receivable, sale of joint venture  
               interests and real estate (4,309) (10,661) 1,298 
          Equity in earnings of consolidated joint ventures (1,697) (2,212) (824) 
          Other - (8) (11) 
          Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 
               Increase in receivables and other assets (4,613) (5,501) (5,030) 
               Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and  
                    accrued expenses 1,036  (3,185) 7,413  

Cash provided by operating activities 58,569  51,170  62,816  

Investing activities 
     Payments received on mortgage loans 775  8  8  
     Net decrease in note receivable from  
          Moore Building Associates LP -  -  946  
     Distributions from unconsolidated joint ventures 2,573  3,148  1,641  
     Investments in unconsolidated joint ventures (286) (549) (1,663) 
     Purchases of real estate related investments (56,625) (106,258) (97,823) 
     Proceeds from sales of joint venture interests and real estate 58,223  97,433  58,602  
     Real estate development (4,434) - (230) 
     Improvements to real estate related investments (30,596) (22,199) (20,063) 
     Cash used in investing activities (30,370) (28,417) (58,582) 

Financing activities 
     Principal payments on mortgage notes payable (24,421) (26,427) (20,840) 
     Net proceeds from (payments on) bank borrowings (5,683) (31,724) 17,450 
     Proceeds from long-term financing 28,950  42,800  29,975  
     Stock options exercised 5,964  6,080  2,996  
     Dividends paid on common stock (29,582) (26,349) (23,445) 
     Dividends paid on preferred stock (10,341) (11,597) (12,054) 
     Purchase of Company stock -  (366) (424) 
     Proceeds from DRIP Plan 11,515  7,799  1,310  
     Redemption of subsidiary preferred membership 
          interests and preferred stock (4,750) (66,250) - 
     Proceeds from stock offerings (5) 82,155 - 
     Cash used in financing activities (28,353) (23,879) (5,032) 
     Impact on cash of consolidation of MBALP 763  - - 
     Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 609  (1,126) (798) 
     Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 468  1,594  2,392  
     Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $       1,077  $       468  $     1,594  

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2004 

Note A – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Principles of consolidation  

       The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Parkway Properties, Inc. ("Parkway" or "the Company") and its majority 
owned subsidiaries.  Parkway also consolidates subsidiaries where the entity is a variable interest entity and Parkway is the primary beneficiary, as 
defined in FASB Interpretation 46R “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” (“FIN 46R”).  All significant intercompany transactions and 
accounts have been eliminated. 

       In December 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FIN 46R, which requires the consolidation of entities in which a 
company absorbs a majority of the entity’s expected losses, receives a majority of the entity’s expected residual returns, or both, as a result of 
ownership, contractual or other financial interests in the entity.   

       Effective January 1, 2004, Parkway began consolidating its ownership interest in MBALP.  Parkway has less than .1% ownership interest in 
MBALP and acts as the managing general partner of this partnership.  MBALP was established for the purpose of owning a commercial office 
building (the Toyota Center in Memphis, Tennessee) and is primarily funded with financing from a third party lender, which is secured by a first 
lien on the rental property of the partnership.  The creditors of MBALP do not have recourse to Parkway.  In acting as the general partner, 
Parkway is committed to providing additional funding to meet partnership operating deficits up to an aggregate amount of $1 million.  MBALP 
has a fixed rate non-recourse first mortgage in the amount of $13,423,000 that is secured by the Toyota Center, which has a carrying amount of 
$23,529,000. 

Parkway receives income from MBALP in the form of interest from a construction note receivable, incentive management fees and property 
management fees.  As a result of the consolidation of MBALP, Parkway has eliminated any intercompany asset, liability, revenue and expense 
accounts between Parkway and MBALP. 

Basis of presentation 

       The accompanying financial statements reflect all adjustments which are, in the opinion of management, necessary for a fair statement of the results 
for the periods presented.  All such adjustments are of a normal recurring nature.  The financial statements should be read in conjunction with the 
annual report and the notes thereto. 

Effective January 1, 1997, the Company elected to be taxed as a real estate investment trust (REIT) under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended. 

       The Company completed its reorganization into the UPREIT (Umbrella Partnership REIT) structure effective January 1, 1998. The Company 
anticipates that the UPREIT structure will enable it to pursue additional investment opportunities by having the ability to offer tax-advantaged 
operating partnership units to property owners in exchange for properties. 

Business 

       The Company's operations are exclusively in the real estate industry, principally the operation, management, and ownership of office 
buildings.  

Use of estimates 

       The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP”) 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Cash equivalents 

       The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 

Allowance for doubtful accounts 

       Accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for amounts that the Company estimates to be uncollectible.  The receivable balance is 
comprised primarily of rent and expense reimbursement income due from the customers. Management evaluates the adequacy of the 
allowance for doubtful accounts considering such factors as the credit quality of our customers, delinquency of payment, historical trends and 
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current economic conditions.  The Company provides an allowance for doubtful accounts for customer balances that are over 90 days past due 
and for specific customer receivables for which collection is considered doubtful. 

Investment in unconsolidated joint ventures 

As of December 31, 2004, Parkway has five investments in unconsolidated joint ventures, which are accounted for using the equity method 
of accounting.  Parkway's investments in unconsolidated joint ventures consist of a 50% interest in Wink-Parkway Partnership, a 30% interest in 
Parkway 233 North Michigan, LLC, a 30% interest in Phoenix OfficeInvest, LLC , a 20% interest in Parkway Joint Venture LLC and a 20% 
interest in RubiconPark I, LLC.  The Company has a non-controlling interest in these investments and accounts for the interest using the equity 
method of accounting.  Therefore, Parkway reports its share of income and losses based on its ownership interest in these entities.  Parkway 
classifies its interests as non-controlling when it holds less than a majority voting interest in the entity and does not have the sole ability, based 
on the terms of the joint venture agreements, to make decisions about the entities’ activities regarding items such as major leases, 
encumbering the entities with debt, major capital expenditures and whether to dispose of the entities. 

Minority Interest 

       Minority Interest – Unit Holders 

       Minority interest in Parkway Properties LP (the “Operating Partnership”) represents the limited partner’s proportionate share of the equity 
in our operating partnership.  The operating partnership pays a regular quarterly distribution to the holders of operating units.  Income is
allocated to minority interest based on the weighted average percentage ownership during the year.  As of December 31, 2004, the minority 
interest in our operating partnership consisted of 1,318 operating units held by a party other than the Company. 

       Minority Interest – Real Estate Partnerships 

       In compliance with FIN 46R (see “Principles of Consolidation”), Parkway began consolidating its ownership interest in MBALP effective 
January 1, 2004.  Parkway has less than .1% ownership interest in MBALP and acts as the managing general partner of this partnership.  Minority 
interest in real estate partnerships represents the other partners’ proportionate share of the equity in the partnership.  Income is allocated to 
minority interest based on the weighted average percentage ownership during the year. 

Real estate properties 

       Real estate properties are stated at the lower of cost less accumulated depreciation, or fair value.  Cost includes the carrying amount of the 
Company's investment plus any additional consideration paid, liabilities assumed, costs of securing title and improvements made subsequent to 
acquisition.  Depreciation of buildings and building improvements is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of 
the assets.  Depreciation of tenant improvements, including personal property, is computed using the straight-line method over the term of the 
lease involved.  Maintenance and repair expenses are charged to expense as incurred.  Geographically, the Company's properties are 
concentrated in the Southeastern and Southwestern United States and Chicago.   

       Balances of major classes of depreciable assets (in thousands) and their respective estimated useful lives are: 

December 31 December 31 
Asset Category Estimated Useful Life 2004 2003 

Building 40 years $ 771,721 $ 682,672 
Building improvements 7 to 40 years 52,771 42,233 
Tenant improvements Term of lease 63,503 49,664 

$ 887,995 $ 774,569 

       Depreciation expense related to these assets of $31,251,000, $25,037,000 and $25,344,000 was recognized in 2004, 2003 and 2002, 
respectively. 

       The Company evaluates its real estate assets upon occurrence of significant adverse changes in their operations to assess whether any 
impairment indicators are present that affect the recovery of the carrying amount.  Real estate assets are classified as held for sale or held and 
used in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets".  In accordance with SFAS No. 144, Parkway records assets held for sale at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to 
sell.  With respect to assets classified as held and used, Parkway recognizes an impairment loss to the extent the carrying amount is not 
recoverable and exceeds its fair value.  Fair value is based on the estimated and realizable contract sales price (if available) for the asset less 
estimated costs to sell.  If a sales price is not available, the estimated undiscounted cash flows of the asset for the remaining useful life are 
used to determine if the carrying value is recoverable.  The cash flow estimates are based on assumptions about employing the asset for its 
remaining useful life.  Factors considered in projecting future cash flows include but are not limited to:  Existing leases, future leasing and 
terminations, market rental rates, capital improvements, tenant improvements, leasing commissions, inflation and other known variables.  
Upon impairment, Parkway recognizes an impairment loss to reduce the carrying value of the real estate asset to the estimate of its fair value. 
In 2002, the Company recorded an impairment loss on its office property in Greenville, South Carolina in the amount of $1.6 million.  The loss 
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on the Greenville property was created largely by rental rate decreases and current conditions within the market.  The estimated fair value of 
the Greenville property was determined based upon current prices of similar properties in the market area. 

       Management continually evaluates the Company's office buildings and the markets where the properties are located to ensure that these 
buildings continue to meet their investment criteria.  During 1998, management implemented a self management strategy for the Company's 
office buildings which requires the Company to have minimum square footage in an area in order for the strategy to be cost effective.  If the 
office properties no longer meet management's investment criteria or the management of the building is not cost effective, management may 
consider a sale of the office property.  If such a sale becomes probable, the office property is classified as held for sale. 

Gains from sales of real estate are recognized based on the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 66 
which require upon closing, the transfer of rights of ownership to the purchaser, receipt from the purchaser of an adequate cash down payment 
and adequate continuing investment by the purchaser.  If the requirements for recognizing gains have not been met, the sale and related costs 
are recorded, but the gain is deferred and recognized generally on the installment method of accounting as collections are received. 

Non-core assets (see Note D) are carried at the lower of cost or fair value minus estimated costs to sell. Operating real estate held for 
investment is stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value.  In 2002, an impairment loss of $205,000 was recorded on 12 acres of land in 
New Orleans, Louisiana.  The loss on the land was computed based on market research and comparable sales in the area. 

Revenue Recognition 

       Revenue from real estate rentals is recognized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the respective leases.     

       Property operating cost recoveries from customers (“expense reimbursements”) are recognized as revenue in the period in which the 
expenses are incurred.  The most common types of expense reimbursements in the Company’s leases are common area maintenance expenses 
(“CAM”) and real estate taxes, where the customer pays its pro-rata share of operating and administrative expenses and real estate taxes.   

       The computation of expense reimbursements is dependent on the provisions of individual customer leases.  Most customers make monthly 
fixed payments of estimated expense reimbursements.  The Company makes adjustments, positive or negative, to expense reimbursement 
income quarterly to adjust the recorded amounts to the Company’s best estimate of the final property operating costs per the most recent 
quarterly revised budget.  After the end of the calendar year, the Company computes each customer’s final expense reimbursements and issues 
a bill or credit for the difference between the actual amount and the amounts billed monthly during the year.  These differences are recorded 
to expense reimbursement income in the period the final bills are prepared, usually beginning in February and completed by May.  The net
amounts of any such adjustments were not material for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.   

       Management fee income is computed and recorded monthly in accordance with the terms set forth in the stand alone management service 
agreements.  Leasing and brokerage commissions are recognized pursuant to the terms of the stand alone agreements at the time the lease is 
signed.  Such fees on Company-owned properties are eliminated in consolidation. 

Acquired Real Estate Assets 

       Parkway accounts for its acquisitions of real estate in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141, “Business 
Combinations” (“SFAS 141”), which requires the fair value of the real estate acquired to be allocated to the acquired tangible assets, 
consisting of land, building, garage, building improvements and tenant improvements, and identified intangible assets and liabilities, consisting 
of the value of above and below market leases, customer relationships, lease costs and the value of  in-place leases. 

Parkway allocates the purchase price to the fair value of the tangible assets of an acquired property by valuing the property as if it were 
vacant.  The as-if-vacant value is allocated to tangible assets based on the relative fair value of those assets.  Value is allocated to tenant 
improvements based on the estimated costs of similar customers with similar terms.  The difference between the purchase price and the as-if-
vacant value represents the fair value of the intangible assets or the intangible gap.  The intangible gap is then allocated among the identifiable 
intangible assets including the above or below market value of in-place leases, customer relationships, lease costs and value of at market in-
place leases. 

       The Company may engage independent third-party appraisers to perform the valuations used to determine the fair value of these 
identifiable intangible assets.  These valuations and appraisals use commonly employed valuation techniques, such as discounted cash flow 
analyses. Factors considered in these analyses include an estimate of carrying costs during hypothetical expected lease-up periods considering 
current market conditions, and costs to execute similar leases. Parkway also considers information obtained about each property as a result of 
its pre-acquisition due diligence, marketing and leasing activities in estimating the fair value of the tangible and intangible assets acquired. In 
estimating carrying costs, the Company includes real estate taxes, insurance and other operating expenses and estimates of lost rentals at 
market rates during the expected lease-up periods depending on specific local market conditions and depending on the type of property 
acquired. Additionally, Parkway estimates costs to execute similar leases including leasing commissions, legal and other related expenses to 
the extent that such costs are not already incurred in connection with a new lease origination as part of the transaction. 

       The fair value of above or below market in-place lease values is the present value of the difference between the contractual amount to be 
paid pursuant to the in-place lease and the estimated current market lease rate expected over the remaining life of the lease.  The capitalized 
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above market lease values are amortized as a reduction of rental income over the remaining terms of the respective leases. The capitalized 
below market lease values are amortized as an increase to rental income over the remaining terms of the respective leases.  

       The fair value of customer relationships represents the quantifiable benefits related to developing a relationship with the current customer. 
Examples of these benefits would be growth prospects for developing new business with the existing customer, the ability to attract similar 
customers to the building, the tenant’s credit quality and expectations of lease renewals (including those existing under the terms of the lease 
agreement or management’s expectation for renewal), among other factors.  We believe that there would typically be little value associated 
with customer relationships that is in excess of the value of the in-place lease and their typical renewal rates.  Any value assigned to customer 
relationships is amortized over the remaining terms of the respective leases plus any expected renewal periods as a lease cost amortization 
expense. 

The fair value of at market in-place leases is the present value associated with re-leasing the in-place lease as if the property was vacant. 
Factors to be considered include estimates of carrying costs during hypothetical expected lease-up periods considering current market 
conditions and costs to execute similar leases.  In estimating carrying costs, the Company includes real estate taxes, insurance and other 
operating expenses and estimates of lost rentals at market rates during the expected lease-up periods.  The value of at market in-place leases is 
amortized as a lease cost amortization expense over the expected life of the lease, including expected renewals. The current estimated lives 
assigned to in-place leases range from 9 to 11 years. 

A separate component of the fair value of in-place leases is identified for the lease costs.  The fair value of lease costs represents the 
estimated commissions or legal fees paid in connection with the current leases in place.  Lease costs are amortized over the remaining terms of 
the respective leases as lease cost amortization expense. 

In no event does the amortization period for intangible assets exceed the remaining depreciable life of the building. Should a customer 
terminate its lease, the unamortized portion of the in-place lease value, lease cost and customer relationship intangibles would be charged to 
expense.  Additionally, the unamortized portion of above market in-place leases would be recorded as a reduction to rental income and the 
below market in-place lease value would be recorded as an increase to rental income. 

Interest income recognition 

       Interest is generally accrued monthly based on the outstanding loan balances.  Recognition of interest income is discontinued whenever, in 
the opinion of management, the collectibility of such income becomes doubtful.  After a loan is classified as non-earning, interest is 
recognized as income when received in cash. 

Amortization 

       Debt origination costs are deferred and amortized using a method that approximates the interest method over the term of the loan. 
Leasing costs are deferred and amortized using the straight-line method over the term of the respective lease. 

Early Extinguishment of Debt 

       When outstanding debt is extinguished, the Company records any prepayment premium and unamortized loan costs to expense.

Derivative Financial Instruments 

       The Company follows SFAS No. 133 "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities" and recognizes all derivative 
instruments on the balance sheet at their fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recorded each period in current earnings or 
other comprehensive income, depending on whether a derivative is designated as part of a hedge transaction and, if it is, the type of hedge 
transaction.  The ineffective portion of the hedge, if any, is immediately recognized in earnings. 

Stock based compensation 

The Company has granted stock options for a fixed number of shares to employees and directors with an exercise price equal to or above 
the fair value of the shares at the date of grant.  The Company accounts for stock option grants in accordance with APB Opinion No. 
25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees" (the intrinsic value method), and accordingly, recognizes no compensation expense for the 
stock option grants. 

{  41 }

 



       The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if the company had applied the fair value recognition 
provisions of FASB Statement No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, to stock-based employee compensation. 

Year Ended December 31 
2004 2003 2002 

Net income available to common stockholders $19,529  $29,119  $17,458  

Stock based employee compensation costs assuming fair value method (249) (425) (763) 

Pro forma net income available to common stockholders $19,280  $28,694  $16,695  

Pro forma net income per common share: 
Basic: 
      Net income available to common stockholders $   1.73  $   2.85  $   1.87  
      Stock based employee compensation costs assuming fair value method (.02) (.04) (.08) 
      Pro forma net income per common share $   1.71  2.81  $   1.79  
Diluted: 
      Net income available to common stockholders $   1.70  $   2.79  $   1.84  
      Stock based employee compensation costs assuming fair value method (.02) (.04) (.08) 
      Pro forma net income per common share $   1.68  $   2.75  $   1.76  

Effective January 1, 2003, the stockholders of the Company approved Parkway’s 2003 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2003 Plan”) that 
authorized the grant of up to 200,000 equity based awards to employees of the Company.  At present, it is Parkway’s intention to grant 
restricted stock and/or deferred incentive share units instead of stock options.  Restricted stock and deferred incentive share units are valued 
based on the New York Stock Exchange closing market price of Parkway common shares (NYSE ticker symbol PKY) as of the date of grant.  
The Company accounts for restricted stock and deferred incentive share units in accordance with APB No. 25 and accordingly, compensation 
expense is recognized over the expected vesting period.  Compensation expense related to restricted stock and deferred incentive share units 
of $783,000, $694,000 and $2,190,000 was recognized in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. 

The restricted stock granted under the 2003 Plan vests the earlier of seven years from grant date or effective December 31, 2005 if certain 
goals of the VALUE2 Plan are met.  The VALUE2 Plan has as its goal to achieve funds from operations available to common stockholders 
(“FFO”) growth that is 10% higher than that of the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts (“NAREIT”) Office Index peer 
group.  Achievement of the goals of the plan will be determined during the first quarter of 2006 upon completion of the audited financial 
statements for 2005 for the Company and each company comprising the peer group.  The value of the restricted shares is being amortized 
ratably over the seven-year period until such time as it becomes probable that the conditions of early vesting will be met.  The deferred 
incentive share units granted under the 2003 Plan vest four years from grant date and are being amortized ratably over the four-year period. 

       Restricted stock and deferred incentive share units are forfeited if an employee leaves the Company before the vesting date.  Shares and/or 
units that are forfeited become available for future grant under the 2003 Plan.  In connection with the forfeited shares/units, the value of the 
forfeited shares/units, unearned compensation, accumulated amortization of unearned compensation and accumulated dividends, if any, are 
reversed.   

Income taxes 

The Company is a REIT for federal income tax purposes.  A corporate REIT is a legal entity that holds real estate assets, and through 
distributions to stockholders, is exempt from the payment of Federal income taxes at the corporate level.  To maintain qualification as a REIT, 
the Company is subject to a number of organizational and operational requirements, including a requirement that it currently distribute to 
stockholders at least 90% of its annual REIT taxable income. 

Net Income Per Common Share 

Basic earnings per share (EPS) are computed by dividing income available to common stockholders by the weighted-average number of 
common shares outstanding for the year.  In arriving at income available to common stockholders, preferred stock dividends are deducted.  
Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that could occur if dilutive operating partnership units, dilutive employee stock options, deferred 
incentive share units and warrants and dilutive 8.34% Series B cumulative convertible preferred stock were exercised or converted into common 
stock that then shared in the earnings of Parkway. 
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    The computation of diluted EPS is as follows: 

Year Ended December 31 
2004 2003 2002 
(in thousands, except per share data) 

Numerator: 
    Basic and diluted net income 
        available to common stockholders $19,529 $29,119 $17,458 
Denominator: 
    Basic weighted average shares 11,270 10,224 9,312 
    Effect of employee stock options, deferred 
        incentive share units and warrants 208 229 168 
    Diluted weighted average shares 11,478 10,453 9,480 
Diluted earnings per share $   1.70 $   2.79 $   1.84 

The computation of diluted EPS did not assume the conversion of the 8.34% Series B cumulative convertible preferred stock because their 
inclusion would have been anti-dilutive. 

Reclassifications 

Certain reclassifications have been made in the 2003 and 2002 consolidated financial statements to conform to the 2004 classifications 
with no impact on previously reported net income or stockholders' equity. 

New Accounting Pronouncements 

       In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment”.  SFAS No. 123R requires 
public companies to measure the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant-date 
fair value of the award. 

Effective July 1, 2005, Parkway will adopt SFAS No. 123R and begin recording compensation expense based on the grant-date fair value of 
employee stock options.  Parkway does not anticipate that the adoption of SFAS No. 123R will have a significant impact on the Company’s 
consolidated financial statements since Parkway has begun granting restricted stock and/or deferred incentive share units instead of stock 
options to employees of the Company.  The compensation expense associated with stock options to be recognized in 2005 is currently 
estimated at $50,000. 

Note B - Investment in Office and Parking Properties 

At December 31, 2004, Parkway owned 55 office and parking properties located in nine states with an aggregate of 9,259,000 square feet 
of leasable space.  The purchase price of office properties acquired during the year ended December 31, 2004 is as follows: 

 Cost
Market Location (in thousands) 

Orlando, FL $  26,295 
Atlanta, GA 76,330 
Phoenix, AZ 46,906 

$149,531 

       The unaudited pro forma effect on the Company's results of operations of the 2004 purchases as if the purchases had occurred on January 
1, 2003 is as follows (in thousands, except per share data): 

Year Ended 
December 31 

2004 2003 
Revenues $ 6,075  $18,009  
Net income available to 
   common stockholders $(1,516) $(3,512) 
Basic earnings per share $(    .13) $(    .34) 
Diluted earnings per share $(    .13) $(    .34) 

       Pro forma results do not purport to be indicative of actual results had the purchase been made at January 1, 2003, or the results that may 
occur in the future. 
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The following is a schedule by year of future approximate minimum rental receipts under noncancelable leases for office buildings owned as 
of December 31, 2004 (in thousands): 

2005 $138,227 
2006 121,711 
2007 105,438 
2008 81,708 
2009 60,376 
Subsequently 157,749 
 $665,209 

On January 29, 2004, the Company purchased Maitland 200, a 206,000 square-foot, four-story office building located in the Maitland 
Center submarket of Orlando, Florida.  Maitland 200 is currently 96% leased and was purchased for $26.3 million plus $1.4 million in closing 
costs and anticipated capital expenditures and leasing costs during the first two years of ownership.  The purchase was funded with the 
Company’s existing lines of credit and represents the reinvestment of proceeds from the sale of properties through joint ventures in 2003. 
Maitland 200 was constructed in 1984 and includes 885 surface parking spaces on 10.27 acres. 

       On April 2, 2004, the Company purchased Capital City Plaza, a 410,000 square-foot, 17-story Class A office building in the Buckhead 
submarket of Atlanta, Georgia.  The acquisition also includes an adjoining five-story parking garage containing 726 spaces, a surface parking lot 
containing 81 parking spaces and rights to an adjacent lot containing 349 parking spaces.  Capital City Plaza is currently 98% leased and was 
acquired for $76.3 million plus $2.3 million in closing costs and anticipated capital expenditures and leasing costs during the first two years of 
ownership.  The purchase was funded with the Company’s existing lines of credit, assumption of an existing non-recourse first mortgage of 
approximately $44 million and the issuance of $15.5 million in subsidiary redeemable preferred membership interests to the seller.  The 
mortgage matures in August 2008 and bears interest at 6.75%. In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the mortgage was 
recorded at $49.1 million to reflect the fair value of the financial instrument based on the rate of 3.67%. 

On August 24, 2004, the Company purchased Squaw Peak Corporate Center, a 287,000 square foot, two-building office campus in the 
Camelback/Squaw Peak submarket of Phoenix, Arizona. The acquisition also includes two adjoining two-story parking decks containing 518 
spaces, 122 covered spaces and a surface parking lot containing 792 parking spaces.  The property is currently 95% leased and was acquired for 
$46.9 million plus $2.7 million in closing costs and anticipated capital expenditures and leasing costs during the first two years of ownership. 
The purchase was funded with the company’s existing lines of credit, proceeds from equity issued under the Company’s DRIP plan in the 
second quarter of 2004, and the assumption of an existing first mortgage of approximately $34 million.  The mortgage matures in December 
2010 and bears interest at 8.16%.  In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the mortgage was recorded at $39.6 million to
reflect the fair value of the financial instrument based on the rate of 4.92% on the date of purchase. 

       On December 14, 2004, the Company sold an 80% interest in three assets to Rubicon America Trust, an Australian listed trust, which is 
advised by the Greenwich Group International (the “Rubicon Joint Venture”).  The sale values the properties at $66.7 million.  The net book 
value of the properties on the date of the sale was $59 million.  The properties included in the 550,000 square foot venture are Lakewood 
and Falls Pointe in Atlanta and Carmel Crossing in Charlotte.  The Company recognized a net acquisition fee of approximately $2 million in 
addition to the sales price and recorded again on the sale of the $3.5 million.  Parkway Realty Services continues to provide management and 
leasing services for the buildings. 

       Simultaneous with closing the Rubicon Joint Venture, the entity that owns the properties closed a $52 million mortgage secured by the 
properties.  The non-recourse first mortgage has a fixed interest rate of 4.86%, is interest only for the first four years, amortizes over 30 years 
thereafter and matures in seven years.  The Company received net cash proceeds from this joint venture sale and financing of approximately 
$58 million, which was used to reduce short-term borrowings under the Company’s lines of credit.  Parkway’s share of the venture’s debt is 
13.85%, which is included in the calculation of the ratio of debt to total market capitalization.  Also, simultaneous with closing, the Company 
repaid the outstanding $4.5 million first mortgage on its Lakewood asset at a prepayment premium of approximately $381,000. 

On January 5, 2005, the Company entered into an agreement to purchase the 70% interest held by Investcorp International, Inc., its joint 
venture partner, in the property known as 233 North Michigan Avenue in Chicago, Illinois. The terms of the agreement place total building 
value at $194.3 million or $182 per square foot. The Company will close the investment in two stages. The Company closed 90% of the 
purchase on January 14, 2005. The second closing for the remainder of Investcorp’s interest will occur following lender and rating agency 
approval, which is expected within ninety days. At closing, the Company earned a $400,000 incentive fee from Investcorp based upon the 
economic returns generated over the life of the partnership. The purchase was funded with proceeds from the sale of 1.6 million shares of 
common stock to Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. on January 10, 2005 and the assumption of an existing first mortgage on the property. 

The 70% interest in 233 North Michigan Avenue was acquired subject to an existing non-recourse first mortgage with an outstanding 
balance of approximately $100 million, which matures July 2011 and carries a fixed interest rate of 7.21%. In accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, the mortgage will be recorded at approximately $112 million to reflect the fair value of the financial instrument based on 
the market rate of 4.94% on the date of purchase.  

In early March 2005, the Company expects, subject to the completion of due diligence, to purchase for approximately $29.3 million two 
adjacent buildings in downtown Jacksonville, Florida. In addition to the purchase price the Company expects to invest an additional $4.3 
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million in improvements.  The buildings, which total 305,000 square feet, are approximately 93% leased. The purchase will be funded via the 
remaining proceeds from the Company’s January 2005 equity offering as well as its existing line of credit.  

       Purchase obligations for tenant improvement and building improvement allowances for leases in place as of December 31, 2004 plus 
commitments for the City Centre garage development are as follows (in thousands): 

2005 $11,394 
2006 580 
2007 36 
2008 14 
2009 2 
Thereafter 14 
Total $12,040 

       Minimum future operating lease payments for various equipment leased at the office properties is as follows for operating leases in place as 
of December 31, 2004 (in thousands): 

2005 $ 925 
2006 529 
2007 222 
2008 87 
Total $1,763 

Note C - Investment in Unconsolidated Joint Ventures 

       In addition to the 55 office and parking properties owned directly, the Company is also invested in five joint ventures with unrelated 
investors.  Parkway retained a minority interest of 30% in two joint ventures, 20% in two joint ventures and 50% in the other.  These investments 
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, as Parkway does not control any of these joint ventures. Accordingly, the assets and 
liabilities of the joint ventures are not included on Parkway's consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2004 and 2003.  Information 
relating to these unconsolidated joint ventures is detailed below (in thousands). 

Parkway’s Square Percentage 
Joint Venture Entity Property Name Location Ownership % Feet Leased 

Parkway 233 North Michigan, LLC 233 N. Michigan Chicago, IL 30.0% 1,070 93.5% 
Phoenix OfficeInvest, LLC Viad Corp Center Phoenix, AZ 30.0% 481 95.7% 
Wink/Parkway Partnership Wink Building New Orleans, LA 50.0% 32 100.0% 
Parkway Joint Venture, LLC (“Jackson JV”) UBS/River Oaks Jackson, MS 20.0% 170 93.0% 
RubiconPark I, LLC (“Rubicon JV”) Lakewood/Falls Pointe Atlanta, GA 20.0% 550 92.1% 

Carmel Crossing Charlotte, NC 
 2,303 93.6% 

       Balance sheet information for the unconsolidated joint ventures is summarized below as of December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003 
(in thousands): 

Balance Sheet Information 
December 31, 2004 

233 North Viad Corp Wink Jackson Rubicon Combined 
 Michigan Center Building JV JV Total 
Unconsolidated Joint Ventures (at 100%): 
Real Estate, Net $168,135 $58,688 $1,259 $16,654 $69,336 $314,072 
Other Assets 14,245 3,737 154 530 6,675 25,341 
Total Assets $182,380 $62,425 $1,413 $17,184 $76,011 $339,413 

Mortgage Debt $100,133 $42,500 $450 $11,269 $52,000 $206,352 
Other Liabilities 10,797 2,579 3 532 295 14,206 
Partners'/Shareholders' Equity 71,450 17,346 960 5,383 23,716 118,855 
Total Liabilities and  
    Partners'/Shareholders' Equity $182,380 $62,425 $1,413 $17,184 $76,011 $339,413 

Parkway’s Share of Unconsolidated JVs: 
Real Estate, Net $  50,440 $17,606 $   630 $  3,331 $13,867 $  85,874 
Mortgage Debt $  30,040 $12,750 $   225 $  2,254 $  7,200 $  52,469 
Net Investment in Joint Ventures $ 14,539 $ 4,388 $   480 $      19 $  5,868 $  25,294 
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Balance Sheet Information 
December 31, 2003 

 233 North Viad Corp Wink Jackson Rubicon Combined 
 Michigan Center Building JV JV Total 
Unconsolidated Joint Ventures (at 100%): 
Real Estate, Net $171,396 $59,587 $1,282 $16,595 $        - $248,860 
Other Assets 13,417 2,939 158 723 - 17,237 
Total Assets $184,813 $62,526 $1,440 $17,318 $        - $266,097 

Mortgage Debt $102,002 $42,500 $  526 $11,442 $        - $156,470 
Other Liabilities 9,054 2,048 4 434 - 11,540 
Partners'/Shareholders' Equity 73,757 17,978 910 5,442 - 98,087 
Total Liabilities and  
    Partners'/Shareholders' Equity $184,813 $62,526 $1,440 $17,318 $        - $266,097 

Parkway’s Share of Unconsolidated JVs: 
Real Estate, Net $  51,419 $17,876 $  641 $  3,319 $        - $  73,255 
Mortgage Debt $  30,601 $12,750 $  263 $  2,288 - $  45,902 
Net Investment in Joint Ventures $ 14,963 $ 4,577 $  455 $      31 $        - $  20,026 

       Income statement information for the unconsolidated joint ventures is summarized below for the years ending December 31, 2004 and 
2003 (in thousands): 

Results of Operations 
Year Ended December 31, 2004 

233 North Viad Corp Wink Jackson Rubicon Combined 
Michigan Center Building JV JV Total 

Unconsolidated Joint Ventures (at 100%): 
Revenues $  33,586  $  11,474  $  305  $  2,827  $  418  $  48,610  
Operating Expenses (15,997) (5,231) (94) (1,234) (159) (22,715) 
Net Operating Income 17,589  6,243  211  1,593  259  25,895  
Interest Expense (7,288) (1,862) (42) (718) (126) (10,036) 
Loan Cost Amortization (118) (371) (3) (5) (5) (502) 
Depreciation and Amortization (5,831) (1,620) (23) (371) (121) (7,966) 
Preferred Distributions (1,689) -  -  -  -  (1,689) 
Net Income $    2,663  $    2,390  $  143  $    499  $      7  $    5,702  

Parkway’s Share of Unconsolidated JVs: 
Net Income $ 799  $      717  $    72  $    100  $      9  $    1,697  
Depreciation and Amortization 1,749  486  12  74  24  2,345  
Funds from Operations $    2,548  $    1,203  $    84  $    174  $    33  $    4,042  

Interest Expense $    2,186  $      559  $    21  $    144  $    17  $    2,927  

Loan Cost Amortization $        36  $      111  $ 1  $ 1  $ 1  $ 150  

Preferred Distributions $ 507  $          -  $ -  $        -  $ -  $ 507  

Other Supplemental Information: 
Distributions from Unconsolidated JVs $    1,509  $      907  $    46  $    111  $       -  $    2,573  
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Results of Operations 
Year Ended December 31, 2003 

233 North Viad Corp Wink Jackson Rubicon Combined 
 Michigan Center Building JV JV Total 

Unconsolidated Joint Ventures (at 100%): 
Revenues $  34,082  $    9,697  $  305  $  1,644  $       -  $  45,728  
Operating Expenses (14,830) (4,387) (85) (698) - (20,000) 
Net Operating Income 19,252  5,310  220  946  -  25,728  
Interest Expense (7,522) (1,494) (49) (335) - (9,400) 
Loan Cost Amortization (119) (308) (2) (1) - (430) 
Depreciation and Amortization (5,362) (1,239) (23) (192) - (6,816) 
Preferred Distributions (1,664) -  -  -  -  (1,664) 
Net Income $    4,585  $    2,269  $  146  $    418  $       -  $    7,418  

Parkway’s Share of Unconsolidated JVs: 
Net Income $    1,375  $      681  $    73  $ 83  $       -  $    2,212  
Depreciation and Amortization 1,609  372  11  38  -  2,030  
Funds from Operations $    2,984  $    1,053  $    84  $    121  $       -  $    4,242  

Interest Expense $    2,256  $      449  $    24  $ 67  $       -  $    2,796  

Loan Cost Amortization $ 36  $ 93  $ 1  $ -  $       -  $      130  
Preferred Distributions $      499  $          -  $      -  $ -  $       -  $      499  

Other Supplemental Information: 
Distributions from Unconsolidated JVs $    2,020  $   1,048  $    50  $      30  $       -  $    3,148  

       Parkway's share of the unconsolidated joint ventures' debt is as follows for December 31, 2004 and 2003 (in thousands): 

Parkway’s Share of Unconsolidated Joint Ventures’ Debt 
Type of Monthly Loan Balance Loan Balance 

Description Debt Service Interest Rate Maturity Debt Service 12/31/04 12/31/03 
Mortgage Notes Payable: 
     233 North Michigan Avenue Amortizing 7.350% 07/11/11 $     231 $30,040 $30,601 
     Viad Corporate Center Interest Only LIBOR + 2.600% 03/11/05 52 12,750 12,750 
     Wink Building Amortizing 8.625% 07/01/09 5 225 263 
     Jackson JV Amortizing 5.840% 05/01/13 14 2,254 2,288 
     Rubicon JV  Interest Only 4.865% 01/01/12 30 7,200 - 

$     332 $52,469 $45,902 

Weighted Average Interest Rate at End of Year 6.982% 6.396% 

       Parkway's share of the scheduled principal payments on mortgage debt for the unconsolidated joint ventures for each of the next five years 
and thereafter through maturity as of December 31, 2004 are as follows (in thousands): 

233 North Viad Corporate Wink Jackson Rubicon 
Schedule of Mortgage Maturities by Year: Michigan Center Building JV JV Total 

2005 $      602 $12,750 $  42 $     37 $        - $13,431 
2006 647 - 46 39 - 732 
2007 695 - 50 41 - 786 
2008 747 - 54 44 - 845 
2009 803 - 33 46 96 978 

Thereafter 26,546 - - 2,047 7,104 35,697 
 $30,040 $12,750 $225 $2,254 $7,200 $52,469 
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Note D - Non-Core Assets 

       At December 31, 2004, Parkway's investment in non-core assets consisted of the following (in thousands): 

Size Location Book Value 
12 acres New Orleans, LA $1,808 
17 acres Charlotte, NC 1,720 

$3,528 

       During the first quarter of 2004, final payment of $774,000 was received on a mortgage note receivable secured by a retail center in 
Texas.  A gain of $774,000 was recognized on the note receivable as it was fully reserved.   

Note E - Notes Payable  

Notes Payable to Banks 

       At December 31, 2004, Parkway had $104,618,000 outstanding under a three-year $170 million unsecured revolving credit facility with a 
consortium of 11 banks with Wachovia Capital Markets, LLC as Sole Lead Arranger and Sole Book Runner, Wachovia Bank, National Association 
as Administrative Agent, PNC Bank, National Association as Syndication Agent, and other banks as participants (the “$170 million line”), a $15 
million unsecured line of credit with PNC Bank (the “$15 million line”) and a $9 million unsecured line of credit with Trustmark National Bank 
(the “$9 million line”).  The interest rates on the $170 million line and the $15 million line were equal to the 30-day LIBOR rate plus 100 to 
150 basis points, depending upon overall Company leverage.  The interest rate on the $9 million line was equal to the 30-day LIBOR rate plus
132.5 basis points.  The weighted average interest rate on unsecured lines of credit was 3.1% and 2.6% at December 31, 2004 and 2003, 
respectively. 

Covenants related to the lines of credit include requirements for maintenance of minimum tangible net worth, fixed charge coverage, 
interest coverage, and debt service coverage.  The lines also establish limits on the Company's indebtedness and dividends. 

The $170 million line matures February 6, 2007 and contains a one-year extension option available at maturity.  The line is expected to 
fund acquisitions of additional investments and has a current interest rate of 30-day LIBOR rate plus 132.5 basis points.  The Company paid a 
facility fee of $170,000 (10 basis points) and origination fees of $556,000 (32.71 basis points) upon closing of the loan agreement and pays an 
annual administration fee of $35,000.  The Company also pays fees on the unused portion of the line based upon overall Company leverage, 
with the current rate set at 12.5 basis points.  The $170 million line replaces the line of credit with JP Morgan Chase Bank for $135 million, 
which was scheduled to mature June 2004.  The new line with Wachovia affords the Company greater financial flexibility at a lower interest 
cost. 

On February 4, 2005, Parkway amended and renewed the $15 million line.  This line of credit matures February 2, 2006, is unsecured and 
is expected to fund the daily cash requirements of the Company’s treasury management system.  The $15 million line has a current interest rate 
equal to the 30-day LIBOR rate plus 132.5 basis points.  The Company paid a facility fee of $15,000 (10 basis points) upon closing of the loan 
agreement.  Under the $15 million line, the Company does not pay annual administration fees or fees on the unused portion of the line. 

       The $9 million line with Trustmark National Bank is interest only, has a current interest rate equal to the 30-day LIBOR rate plus 132.5 basis 
points and matures December 7, 2005.  The proceeds of the loan were used to finance the construction of the City Centre Garage currently 
under development. 

       The Company's interest rate hedge contracts as of December 31, 2004 are summarized as follows (in thousands): 

Fair 
Market Value 

Type of Notional Maturity Fixed December 31 
Hedge Amount Date Reference Rate Rate 2004 2003 

Swap $40,000 06/30/06 1-Month LIBOR 3.53% $(193) - 
Swap $20,000 12/31/05 1-Month LIBOR 3.18% ( 33) - 
Reverse Swap $  4,917 07/15/06 1-Month LIBOR + 3.455% 8.08% - $243 

 $(226) $243 

To protect against the potential for rapidly rising interest rates, the Company entered into two interest rate swap agreements in May 2004. 
The first interest rate swap agreement is for a $40 million notional amount and fixed the 30-day LIBOR interest rate at 3.53% for the period 
January 1, 2005 through June 30, 2006. The second interest rate swap agreement is for a $20 million notional amount and fixed the 30-day 
LIBOR interest rate at 3.18% for the period January 1, 2005 through December 31, 2005. The Company designated the swaps as hedges of the 
variable interest rates on the Company’s borrowings under the $170 million line.  Accordingly, changes in the fair value of the swap are 
recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income until the hedged item is recognized in earnings. 
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Mortgage notes payable without recourse 

       A summary of fixed rate mortgage notes payable at December 31, 2004 and 2003 which are non-recourse to the Company, is as follows (in 
thousands): 

Carrying 
Amount Note Balance 

 Interest Monthly Maturity of December 31 
Office Property Rate Payment Date Collateral 2004 2003 

Lakewood II (Note 1) 8.080% $        - 07/15/06 $            - $         - $    5,161 
Citrus Center 6.000% 164 08/01/07 32,511 19,809 20,560 
Teachers Insurance and 
    Annuity Association (12 properties) 6.945% 869 07/01/08 151,611 66,857 72,879 
Capital City Plaza (Note 3) 3.670% 298 09/01/08 61,104 47,894 - 
Honeywell (Note 1) 8.125% - 10/10/08 - - 4,650 
John Hancock Facility (3 properties) 4.830% 97 03/01/09 29,675 24,000 24,000 
John Hancock Facility (3 properties) 5.270% 81 05/01/10 29,026 18,800 18,800 
Moore Building Associates LP (Note 2) 7.895% 124 06/01/10 23,529 13,423 - 
Capitol Center 8.180% 165 09/01/10 36,586 19,697 20,046 
One Jackson Place 7.850% 152 10/10/10 17,002 13,233 14,048 
Squaw Peak (Note 4) 4.920% 261 12/01/10 42,499 39,209 - 
Maitland 4.390% 71 07/01/11 19,907 19,275 - 
Wells Fargo 4.390% 35 07/01/11 11,945 9,675 - 
400 North Belt 8.250% 65 08/01/11 10,786 3,981 4,418 
Woodbranch 8.250% 32 08/01/11 4,157 1,917 2,128 
Roswell North (Note 1) 8.375% - 01/01/12 - - 2,336 
Bank of America Plaza 7.100% 146 05/10/12 32,280 19,577 19,952 
One Park 10 Plaza 7.100% 64 06/01/12 6,574 9,303 9,389 
First Tennessee Plaza 7.170% 136 12/15/12 28,802 9,932 10,820 
Morgan Keegan Tower 7.620% 163 10/01/19 31,000 17,393 18,003 

 $2,923 $568,994 $353,975 $247,190 

(1)  Principal paid on early extinguishment of debt $11,334. 

(2) In accordance with FIN 46, Parkway began including Moore Building Associates LP (“MBALP”) in its consolidated financial statements 
effective January 1, 2004.  Parkway owns less than .1% of MBALP. 

(3) The Capital City Plaza mortgage in the amount of $43,692 was assumed with the purchase of the building on April 2, 2004.  The 
mortgage note payable, which has a stated rate of 6.75%, was recorded at $49,073 to reflect the fair value of the financial instrument based on 
the rate of 3.67% on the date of purchase. 

(4) The Squaw Peak mortgage in the amount of $33,869 was assumed with the purchase of the building on August 24, 2004.  The mortgage 
note payable, which has a stated rate of 8.16%, was recorded at $39,604 to reflect the fair value of the financial instrument based on the rate 
of 4.92% on the date of purchase. 

The aggregate annual maturities of mortgage notes payable at December 31, 2004 are as follows (in thousands): 

2005 $  14,609 
2006 16,272 
2007 35,107 
2008 98,475 
2009 30,517 
Subsequently 158,995 

$353,975 
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Note F - Income Taxes 

The Company elected to be taxed as a real estate investment trust (REIT) under the Internal Revenue Code, commencing with its taxable 
year ended December 31, 1997.  To qualify as a REIT, the Company must meet a number of organizational and operational requirements, 
including a requirement that it currently distribute at least 90% of its adjusted taxable income to its stockholders.  It is management's current 
intention to adhere to these requirements and maintain the Company's REIT status.  As a REIT, the Company generally will not be subject to 
corporate level federal income tax on taxable income it distributes currently to its stockholders.  If the Company fails to qualify as a REIT in any 
taxable year, it will be subject to federal income taxes at regular corporate rates (including any applicable alternative minimum tax) and may 
not be able to qualify as a REIT for four subsequent taxable years.  Even if the Company qualifies for taxation as a REIT, the Company may be 
subject to certain state and local taxes on its income and property, and to federal income and excise taxes on its undistributed taxable income. 
In addition, taxable income from non-REIT activities managed through taxable REIT subsidiaries is subject to federal, state and local income 
taxes. 

       In January 1998, the Company completed its reorganization into an umbrella partnership REIT ("UPREIT") structure under which 
substantially all of the Company's office building real estate assets are owned by an operating partnership, Parkway Properties LP (the 
"Operating Partnership"). Presently, substantially all interests in the Operating Partnership are owned by the Company and a wholly-owned 
subsidiary. 

At December 31, 2004, the Company had net operating loss ("NOL") carryforwards for federal income tax purposes of $8,881,000, which 
expire at various dates through 2018.  The Company expects to utilize the remaining NOL by December 2007.  The utilization of these NOLs 
can cause the Company to incur a small alternative minimum tax liability. 

       The Company's income differs for income tax and financial reporting purposes principally because real estate owned has a different basis 
for tax and financial reporting purposes, producing different gains upon disposition and different amounts of annual depreciation.  The 
following reconciles GAAP net income to taxable income for the years ending December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 (in thousands): 

2004 2003 2002 
 Estimate Actual Actual 
GAAP net income from REIT operations (1)  $29,515  $43,181  $29,512 
GAAP to tax adjustments: 
     Depreciation and amortization 8,075  3,642  3,406 
     Gains and losses from capital transactions (730) (4,485) 2,572 
     Restricted stock amortization 783  694  2,189  
     Restricted stock released to shareholders -  (2,715) -  
     Stock options exercised (3,742) (2,576) (824) 
     Other differences (670) (362) (63) 
Taxable income before adjustments 33,231  37,379  36,792 
Less:  NOL carryforward -  -  (1,293) 
Adjusted taxable income subject to 90% dividend requirement $33,231  $37,379  $35,499 

(1)  GAAP net income from REIT operations is net of amounts attributable to minority interest. 

       The following reconciles cash dividends paid with the dividends paid deduction for the years ending December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 
(in thousands): 

2004 2003 2002 
Estimate Actual Actual 

Cash dividends paid $39,568  $37,792  $35,499  
Less:  Dividends on deferred compensation plan shares (337) (333) - 
Dividends paid deduction $39,231  $37,459  $35,499  

       The following characterizes distributions paid per common share for the years ending December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002: 

2004 2003 2002 
Amount Percentage Amount Percentage Amount Percentage 

Ordinary income $2.00 76.9% $2.32 89.2% $2.52 98.4% 
Post May 5, 2003 capital gain .04 1.5% .16 6.2% - - 
Unrecaptured Section 1250 gain .14 5.4% .12 4.6% 0.04 1.6% 
Return of capital .42 16.2% - - - - 

$2.60 100.0% $2.60 100.0% $2.56 100.0% 
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Note G - Stock Option and Long-Term Compensation Plans 

The Company has elected to follow APB No. 25 and related Interpretations in accounting for its employee stock options because, as 
discussed below, the alternative fair value accounting provided for under SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation", requires 
the use of option valuation models that were not developed for use in valuing employee stock options. 

       Effective July 1, 2005, Parkway will begin recording compensation expense based on the grant-date fair value of employee stock options in 
accordance with SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment.”  Parkway does not anticipate that the adoption of SFAS No. 123R will have a 
significant impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements since Parkway has begun granting restricted stock and/or deferred 
incentive share units instead of stock options to employees of the Company. The compensation expense associated with stock options to be 
recognized in 2005 is currently estimated at $50,000. 

Effective January 1, 2003, the stockholders of the Company approved Parkway’s 2003 Equity Incentive Plan (“the 2003 Plan”) that 
authorized the grant of up to 200,000 equity based awards to employees of the Company.  The 2003 Plan replaced the 1994 Stock Option 
and Long-Term Compensation Plan.  At present, it is Parkway’s intention to grant restricted stock and/or deferred incentive share units instead 
of stock options to employees of the Company, although the 2003 Plan authorizes various forms of incentive awards, including options.  On 
each July 1 beginning with July 1, 2004, the number of shares available under the plan will increase automatically by .25% of the number of 
shares of common stock outstanding on that date (increase of 28,196 shares in 2004), provided that the number of shares available for grant 
under this plan and the 2001 Directors’ Plan shall not exceed 11.5% of the shares outstanding (less the restricted shares issued and outstanding) 
plus the shares issuable on the conversion of outstanding convertible debt and equity securities or the exercise of outstanding warrants or other 
rights to purchase common shares.  The 2003 Plan has a ten-year term. 

The 2001 Directors’ Plan provides for option grants to the directors.  The plan has a ten-year term and options for up to 300,000 shares of 
common stock may be granted under the plan.   

Under the prior 1994 Stock Option and Long-Term Compensation Plan, a total of 169,000 shares of restricted stock had been issued to 
officers of the Company with a vesting period of the earlier of 10 years or December 31, 2002 if certain operating results were achieved 
through the 55 iinn 5500 PPllaann..  Parkway met the goals set forth in the 55 iinn 5500 PPllaann and effective February 2003, the Company’s Compensation 
Committee determined that all of the restricted shares were vested.  The restricted shares were valued at $4,836,000 and had been fully 
amortized as of December 31, 2002.  Compensation expense related to the restricted stock of $2,190,000 was recognized in 2002. 

       In 2004 and 2003, 143,500 shares of restricted stock were issued to certain officers of the Company in connection with the VALUE2 plan.  
The restricted shares issued are valued at $5,162,000, and vest at the end of 7 years or December 31, 2005 if certain goals of the VALUE2 plan 
are achieved.  Additionally, 9,487 deferred incentive share units were granted to employees of the Company in 2004 and 2003. The deferred 
incentive share units are valued at $436,000, and the units vest at the end of 4 years.  Compensation expense related to the restricted stock 
and deferred incentive share units of $783,000 and $694,000 was recognized in 2004 and 2003, respectively. 

       Pro forma information regarding net income and net income per share is required by SFAS No. 123, and has been determined as if the
Company had accounted for its employee stock options under the fair value method of that Statement.  The fair value for these options was 
estimated at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions for 2004, 2003 
and 2002: risk-free interest of 4.5%,  4.0%, and 3.50%, respectively; dividend yield of 5.71%, 6.41% and 7.30%, respectively; volatility factor of 
the expected market price of the Company's common stock of .194, .129 and .202, respectively; and a weighted-average expected life of the 
options of five years for the 1994 Stock Option Plan in 2004, 2003 and 2002; five years for 2004, 2003 and 2002 for the 1991 Directors’ 
Stock Option Plan; and five years for 2004, 2003 and 2002, for the 2001 Directors’ Stock Option Plan.  Because the Company's employee 
stock options have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, and because changes in the subjective input assumptions 
can materially affect the fair value estimate, in management's opinion, the existing model does not necessarily provide a reliable single measure 
of the fair value of its employee stock options.  The weighted average fair value of options granted during 2003 and 2002 was $2.01 and 
$2.75, respectively.  No options were granted during 2004. 

For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options granted in 2003 and 2002 is amortized to expense over the 
options' vesting period.  The Company's pro forma information is detailed in Note A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies under Stock 
based compensation. 
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       A summary of the Company's stock option activity and related information is as follows: 

1994 Stock 1991 Directors 2001 Directors 
Option Plan Stock Option Plan Stock Option Plan

 Weighted Weighted  Weighted 
 Average Average Average 

Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price 
Outstanding at December 31, 2001 869,702  $28.75 89,500  $25.91 -  $       - 
Granted  72,750  35.69 -  - 40,500  33.31 
Exercised  (97,084) 29.38 (25,500) 22.32 (3,000) 30.70 
Forfeited  (17,921) 30.90 -  - -  - 
Outstanding at December 31, 2002 827,447  29.24 64,000  27.34 37,500  33.52 
Granted  -  - -  - 25,500  40.46 
Exercised  (183,661) 28.06 (20,500) 23.20 (13,700) 33.75 
Forfeited  (23,012) 31.65 -  - -  - 
Outstanding at December 31, 2003 620,774  29.52 43,500  29.29 49,300  37.05 
Granted  - - - - - -
Exercised  (206,155) 27.32 (6,000) 32.56 (4,000) 34.05 
Forfeited  (21,262) 33.77 -  - -  - 
Outstanding at December 31, 2004 393,357  $30.38 37,500  $28.76 45,300  $37.31 

       Following is a summary of the status of options outstanding at December 31, 2004: 

 Outstanding Options Exercisable Options 
Weighted 
Average Weighted Weighted 

Remaining Average Average 
Contractual Exercise Exercise 

Exercise Price Range Number Life Price Number Price 
1994 Stock Option Plan 
$12.51 - $15.75 17,106 1.1 years $13.97 17,106 $13.97 
$15.76 - $25.63 15,375 1.5 years $21.00 15,375 $21.00 
$25.64 - $29.00 51,868 4.3 years $27.65 51,868 $27.65 
$29.01 - $31.00 73,262 5.4 years $30.14 70,254 $30.11 
$31.01 - $33.50 122,794 4.2 years $31.30 108,611 $31.24 
$33.51 - $36.00 112,952 7.1 years $34.56 46,363 $34.17 
1991 Directors Stock Option Plan 
$10.01 - $20.01 4,500 1.0 years $13.08 4,500 $13.08 
$25.01 - $30.00 10,500 4.8 years $28.78 10,500 $28.78 
$30.00 - $36.00 22,500 4.2 years $31.89 22,500 $31.89 
2001 Directors Stock Option Plan 
$30.00 - $36.00 9,000 6.4 years $30.70 9,000 $30.70 
$36.01 - $40.00 29,800 8.0 years $37.83 29,800 $37.83 
$40.01 - $45.00 6,500 8.8 years $44.10 6,500 $44.10 

Note H – Commitments and Contingencies 

Legal Matters 

       Parkway is subject to various legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of business.  These matters are generally covered 
by insurance.  The Company believes that the final outcome of such matters will not have a material effect on our financial statements. 

Commitments 

       Parkway has an investment in Moore Building Associates LP (“MBALP”) established for the purpose of owning a commercial office building 
(the Toyota Center in Memphis, Tennessee).  Parkway has less than .1% ownership interest in MBALP and acts as the managing general partner 
of this partnership.  In acting as the general partner, the Company is committed to providing additional funding to meet partnership operating 
deficits up to an aggregate of $1 million. 

Note I – Related Party Transactions 

       Matthew W. Kaplan, a director of the Company, is a Portfolio Manager for Five Arrows Realty Securities III LLC, which owned 100% of the 
803,499 and 1,942,857 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred stock at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.  The balance of Series 
B Convertible Preferred stock was $28,122,000 and $68,000,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. 
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Note J – Other Matters 

      Through the Company’s Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan (“DRIP Plan”), 296,173 common shares were sold during 2004. 
Net proceeds received on the issuance of shares were $11,515,000, which equates to an average net price per share of $38.88 at a discount of 
2.3%.  The proceeds were used to reduce amounts outstanding under the Company’s short-term lines of credit. 

In 2001, the Company issued 2,142,857 shares of 8.34% Series B Cumulative Convertible Preferred stock to Rothschild/Five Arrows.  
Effective after December 31, 2002, the holder has the right to convert each share of Series B Convertible Preferred into a share of Parkway 
common stock.  In addition to the issuance of Series B preferred stock, Parkway issued a warrant to Five Arrows to purchase 75,000 shares of 
the Company’s common stock at a price of $35 for a period of seven years.  During 2004, 1,139,358 shares of Series B preferred stock were 
converted into 1,139,358 shares of Parkway common stock.  As of December 31, 2004, there were 803,499 shares of Series B preferred stock 
outstanding.  Dividends of $5,186,000 and $6,091,000 were declared on the stock in 2004 and 2003, respectively.  There is no public 
market for Parkway’s Series B Cumulative Convertible Preferred stock.   

In connection with the Capital City Plaza purchase, the limited liability company that owns the building issued $15.5 million in preferred 
membership interests to the seller.  The preferred membership interests pay the seller a 7% coupon rate and were issued to accommodate 
their tax planning needs.  The seller has the right to redeem $5.5 million of the membership interests within six months of closing and 
$10 million of the membership interests within nine months of closing.  Parkway has the right to retire the preferred interest 40 months after 
closing.  During the third quarter in 2004, the seller redeemed $4,750,000 of the preferred membership interests. 

On January 10, 2005, the Company sold 1,600,000 shares of common stock in a public offering in which Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. 
was the underwriter for net proceeds of approximately $76 million or $47.50 per share.  The proceeds were used towards the acquisition of 
the 70% interest held by the Company’s joint venture partner in the property known as 233 North Michigan Avenue in Chicago, IL and to 
reduce outstanding variable rate debt. 

On September 7, 1995, the board of directors of our predecessor, The Parkway Company, declared a dividend distribution of one right for 
each outstanding share of our common stock to stockholders of record on the terms and conditions set forth in a Shareholder Rights 
Agreement. The Shareholder Rights Agreement and the rights issued thereunder will expire on September 6, 2005 and the Company does not 
intend to renew or extend the Shareholder Rights Agreement or the rights when they expire. 

Supplemental Profit and Loss Information 

       Included in operating expenses are taxes, principally property taxes, of $15,737,000, $14,607,000 and $17,365,000 for the years 
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. 

Supplemental Cash Flow Information 

Year Ended December 31 
2004 2003 2002 

 (In thousands) 

Interest paid $24,474  $18,735 $24,740 
Income taxes paid (72) 118 19 
Mortgages assumed in purchases 88,677  21,153 - 
Restricted shares and deferred incentive 
     share units issued 271  5,328 - 
Shares issued in lieu of Directors' fees 138  76 62 
Issuance of subsidiary redeemable 
     preferred membership interests 15,491  - - 
Mortgage transferred in sale of 70% interest in  
     Parkway 233 North Michigan LLC -  - 73,289 
Note receivable from the sale of 70% interest in 
     Parkway 233 North Michigan LLC -  - 747 
Original issue costs associated with redemption 
     of preferred stock -  2,619 - 

{  53 }

 



Rents Receivable and Other Assets 

December 31 
2004 2003 

 (In thousands) 
Rents receivable  $     948  $  1,484  
Allowance for doubtful accounts (353) (376) 
Straight line rent receivable 10,369  7,647  
Other receivables 3,356  5,793  
Lease costs (net of accumulated amortization of 
     $9,802 and $7,825, respectively) 12,180  8,877  
Loan costs (net of accumulated amortization of 
     $2,302 and $2,395, respectively) 3,695  2,437  
Escrow and other deposits 9,922  6,709  
Prepaid items 528  986  
Other assets 1,803  1,515  

$42,448  $35,072  

Intangible Assets 

The following table reflects the portion of the purchase price of office properties allocated to intangible assets in accordance with SFAS 
141, as discussed in “Note A”.  The portion of purchase price allocated to below market lease value and the related accumulated amortization 
is reflected in the Schedule of Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities within this note. 

December 31 
2004 2003 

 (In thousands) 

Lease in place value $37,306  $8,279  
    Accumulated amortization (2,476) (386) 
Above market lease value 4,265  (190) 
    Accumulated amortization (1,061) 29 

$38,034  $7,732  

Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities 

December 31 
2004 2003 

 (In thousands) 
Office property payables: 
     Accrued expenses and accounts payable $15,643  $  9,694 
     Accrued property taxes 8,057  10,360 
     Security deposits 2,479  2,338 
     Below market lease value 3,739  -  
     Accumulated amortization – below market 
          lease value (965) - 
Corporate payables 2,733  3,326 
Deferred compensation plan liability 5,212  4,673 
Dividends payable 2,264  2,618 
Deferred gains -  861 
Accrued payroll 1,931  1,607 
Interest payable 1,375  1,255 
Other payables -  290 

$42,468  $37,022 

1,803  1,515  
 $42,448  $35,072  
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Note K - Fair Values of Financial Instruments 

Cash and cash equivalents 

       The carrying amounts for cash and cash equivalents approximated fair value at December 31, 2004 and 2003. 

Mortgage loans 

The fair value for the mortgage loan receivable is estimated based on net realizable value and discounted cash flow analysis, using 
interest rates currently being offered on loans with similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality.  The fair value of the mortgage loan 
receivable at December 31, 2003 approximated its carrying amount of $861,000. 

The fair value of the mortgage notes payable without recourse are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis, based on the Company's 
current incremental borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements.  The aggregate fair value of the mortgage notes payable 
without recourse at December 31, 2004 was $366,252,000 as compared to its carrying amount of $353,975,000.  The aggregate fair value 
of the mortgage notes payable without recourse at December 31, 2003 was $259,408,000 as compared to its carrying amount of 
$247,190,000. 

Note L - Segment Information 

       Parkway’s primary business is the ownership and operation of office properties. The Company accounts for each office property or groups 
of related office properties as an individual operating segment.  Parkway has aggregated its individual operating segments into a single reporting 
segment due to the fact that the individual operating segments have similar operating and economic characteristics.    

       The Company believes that the individual operating segments exhibit similar economic characteristics such as being leased by the square 
foot, sharing the same primary operating expenses and ancillary revenue opportunities and being cyclical in the economic performance based 
on current supply and demand conditions.  The individual operating segments are also similar in that revenues are derived from the leasing of 
office space to customers and each office property is managed and operated consistently in accordance with Parkway’s standard operating 
procedures.  The range and type of customer uses of our properties is similar throughout our portfolio regardless of location or class of building 
and the needs and priorities of our customers do not vary from building to building.  Therefore, Parkway’s management responsibilities do not 
vary from location to location based on the size of the building, geographic location or class. 

       The management of the Company evaluates the performance of the reportable office segment based on FFO.  Parkway computes FFO in 
accordance with standards established by NAREIT, which may not be comparable to FFO reported by other REITs that do not define the term 
in accordance with the current NAREIT definition.  FFO is defined as net income available to common stockholders, computed in accordance 
with GAAP, excluding gains or losses from sales of properties, plus real estate related depreciation and amortization and after adjustments for 
unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures.  Adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures will be calculated to reflect 
funds from operations on the same basis. 

       Management believes that FFO is an appropriate measure of performance for equity REITs.  We believe FFO is helpful to investors as a 
supplemental measure that enhances the comparability of our operations by adjusting net income for items not reflective of our principal and 
recurring operations.  This measure, along with cash flows from operating, financing and investing activities, provides investors with an 
indication of our ability to incur and service debt, to make capital expenditures and to fund other cash needs.  In addition, FFO has widespread 
acceptance and use within the REIT investor and analyst communities. We believe that in order to facilitate a clear understanding of our 
operating results, FFO should be examined in conjunction with the net income as presented in our consolidated financial statements and notes 
thereto.  FFO does not represent cash generated from operating activities in accordance with GAAP and is not an indication of cash available 
to fund cash needs.  FFO should not be considered an alternative to net income as an indicator of the Company's operating performance or as 
an alternative to cash flow as a measure of liquidity. 

{  55 }

 



       The following is a reconciliation of FFO and net income available to common stockholders for office properties and total consolidated 
entities for the years ending December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002. 

As of or for the year ended December 31, 2004 
Office Unallocated 

Properties and Other Consolidated 
(In thousands) 

Property operating revenues (a) $160,506  $            -  $160,506  
Property operating expenses (b) (73,487) - (73,487) 
Property net operating income from continuing operations 87,019   -  87,019  

Management company income -  3,832  3,832  
Other income -  37  37  
Interest expense (c) (21,580) (4,237) (25,817) 
Management company expenses -  (358) (358) 
General and administrative expenses -  (4,464) (4,464) 
Other expense -  (22) (22) 
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures 1,697  -  1,697  
Adjustment for depreciation and amortization – unconsolidated  
    joint ventures 2,345  -  2,345  
Gain on note receivable -  774  774  
Adjustment for minority interest – real estate partnerships (527) - (527) 
Dividends on preferred stock -  (4,800) (4,800) 
Dividends on convertible preferred stock -  (5,186) (5,186) 
Funds from operations available to common stockholders 68,954  (14,424) 54,530  

Depreciation and amortization (36,843) - (36,843) 
Depreciation and amortization – unconsolidated joint ventures (2,345) - (2,345) 
Depreciation and amortization – minority interest – real estate  
    partnerships 654  -  654  
Gain on sale of joint venture interest 3,535  -  3,535  
Minority interest – unit holders -  (2) (2) 
Net income available to common stockholders $  33,955  $ (14,426) $  19,529  

Total assets $920,780  $  10,408  $931,188  

Office and parking properties $820,807  $          -  $820,807  

Investment in unconsolidated joint ventures $  25,294  $          -  $  25,294  

Capital expenditures $  35,030  $          -  $  35,030  

(a)  Included in property operating revenues are rental revenues, customer reimbursements, parking income and other income. 

(b) Included in property operating expenses are real estate taxes, insurance, contract services, repairs and maintenance and property 
operating expenses. 

(c) Interest expense for office properties represents interest expense on property secured mortgage debt and subsidiary redeemable 
preferred membership interests.  Interest expense for office properties does not include interest expense on the unsecured lines of credit. 
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As of or for the year ended December 31, 2003 
Office Unallocated 

Properties and Other Consolidated 
(In thousands) 

Property operating revenues (a) $142,196  $            -  $142,196  
Property operating expenses (b) (63,362) - (63,362) 
Property net operating income from continuing operations 78,834   -  78,834  

Management company income -  2,136  2,136  
Interest on note receivable from MBALP -  819  819  
Incentive management fee income from MBALP -  300  300  
Other income -  573  573  
Interest expense (c) (16,319) (3,399) (19,718) 
Management company expenses -  (391) (391) 
General and administrative expenses -  (4,201) (4,201) 
Other expense -  (37) (37) 
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures 2,212  -  2,212  
Adjustment for depreciation and amortization – unconsolidated  
    joint ventures 2,030  -  2,030  
Gain on sale of land -  362  362  
Original issue costs associated with redemption of preferred stock -  (2,619) (2,619) 
Dividends on preferred stock -  (5,352) (5,352) 
Dividends on convertible preferred stock -  (6,091) (6,091) 
Funds from operations available to common stockholders 66,757  (17,900) 48,857  

Depreciation and amortization (28,030) - (28,030) 
Depreciation and amortization – unconsolidated joint ventures (2,030) - (2,030) 
Deferred gain income  -  26  26  
Gain on sale of joint venture interests and office property 10,299  -  10,299  
Minority interest – unit holders -  (3) (3) 
Net income available to common stockholders $  46,996  $ (17,877) $  29,119  

Total assets $785,949  $16,359  $802,308  

Office and parking properties $728,695  $          -  $728,695  

Investment in unconsolidated joint ventures $  20,026  $          -  $  20,026  

Capital expenditures $  22,199  $          -  $  22,199  

(a)  Included in property operating revenues are rental revenues, customer reimbursements, parking income and other income. 

(b) Included in property operating expenses are real estate taxes, insurance, contract services, repairs and maintenance and property 
operating expenses. 

(c) Interest expense for office properties represents interest expense on property secured mortgage debt and does not include interest 
expense on the unsecured lines of credit. 
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As of or for the year ended December 31, 2002 
Office Unallocated 

Properties and Other Consolidated 
(In thousands) 

Property operating revenues (a) $152,442  $            -  $152,442  
Property operating expenses (b) (65,942) - (65,942) 
Property net operating income from continuing operations 86,500  -  86,500  

Management company income -  1,197  1,197  
Interest on note receivable from MBALP -  895  895  
Incentive management fee income from MBALP -  325  325  
Other income -  390  390  
Interest expense (c) (19,839) (6,647) (26,486) 
Management company expenses -  (416) (416) 
General and administrative expenses -  (5,029) (5,029) 
Other expense -  (34) (34) 
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures 824  -  824  
Adjustment for depreciation and amortization – unconsolidated  
    joint ventures 861  -  861  
Impairment loss on office property and land (1,594) (205) (1,799) 
Income from discontinued operations 47  -  47  
Adjustment for depreciation and amortization – discontinued 
    operations 22  -  22  
Dividends on preferred stock -  (5,797) (5,797) 
Dividends on convertible preferred stock -  (6,257) (6,257) 
Funds from operations available to common stockholders 66,821  (21,578) 45,243  

Depreciation and amortization (27,412) - (27,412) 
Depreciation and amortization – unconsolidated joint ventures (861) - (861) 
Depreciation and amortization – discontinued operations (22) - (22) 
Deferred gain income  -  11  11  
Loss on sale of joint venture interest (269) - (269) 
Gain on sale of real estate from discontinued operations 770  -  770  
Minority interest – unit holders -  (2) (2) 
Net income available to common stockholders $  39,027  $ (21,569) $  17,458  

Total assets $745,618  $18,319  $763,937  

Office and parking properties $706,551  $          -  $706,551  

Investment in unconsolidated joint ventures $  15,640  $          -  $  15,640  

Capital expenditures $  20,293  $          -  $  20,293  

(a)  Included in property operating revenues are rental revenues, customer reimbursements, parking income and other income. 

(b) Included in property operating expenses are real estate taxes, insurance, contract services, repairs and maintenance and property 
operating expenses. 

(c) Interest expense for office properties represents interest expense on property secured mortgage debt and does not include interest 
expense on the unsecured lines of credit. 

{  58 }

 



Note M - Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited): 

       Summarized quarterly financial data for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 are as follows (in thousands, except per share data): 

2004 
First Second Third Fourth 

Revenues (other than gains) $  37,327  $  40,658  $  42,656  $  43,734  
Expenses (32,136) (34,167) (37,832) (36,856) 
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures 743  367  359  228  
Gain on note receivable and sale of joint venture 
      interest 774  -  -  3,535  
Minority interest - unit holders -  (1) (1) -  
Minority interest – real estate partnerships 22  101  (31) 35  
Net income 6,730  6,958  5,151  10,676  
Dividends on preferred stock (1,200) (1,200) (1,200) (1,200) 
Dividends on convertible preferred stock (1,409) (1,363) (1,350) (1,064) 
Net income available to common stockholders $    4,121  $    4,395  $    2,601  $    8,412  
Net income per common share: 
      Basic $       .38  $       .40  $       .23  $       .71  
      Diluted $       .37  $       .39  $       .23  $       .70  
Dividends per common share $       .65  $       .65  $       .65  $       .65  
Weighted average shares outstanding: 
     Basic 10,864  11,085  11,330  11,794  
     Diluted 11,095  11,258  11,528  12,006  

2003 
First Second Third Fourth 

Revenues (other than gains) $  37,994  $  36,415  $  35,771  $  35,870  
Expenses (30,407) (28,374) (27,856) (29,102) 
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures 431  623  590  568  
Gain on note receivable, sale of joint venture interests 
      and real estate 1,096  4,545  5,020  -  
Minority interest - unit holders (1) - (1) (1) 
Net income 9,113  13,209  13,524  7,335  
Original issue costs associated with redemption 
      of preferred stock -  (2,619) -  -  
Dividends on preferred stock (1,449) (1,503) (1,200) (1,200) 
Dividends on convertible preferred stock (1,564) (1,564) (1,545) (1,418) 
Net income available to common stockholders $    6,100  $    7,523  $  10,779  $    4,717  
Net income per common share: 
      Basic $      0.65  $      0.74  $      1.04  $      0.44  
      Diluted $      0.63  $      0.72  $      0.96  $      0.43  
Dividends per common share $      0.65  $      0.65  $      0.65  $      0.65  
Weighted average shares outstanding: 
     Basic 9,449  10,224  10,411  10,795  
     Diluted 9,610  10,457  12,790  11,030  
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